
From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Westhoff, Alex (CPC)
Subject: FW: Please forward to HPC
Date: Wednesday, August 18, 2021 8:45:23 AM
Attachments: HPC Hearing 08-18-321.DOC
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Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

 
Expanded in-person services at the Permit Center at 49 South Van Ness Avenue are
available. Most other San Francisco Planning functions are being conducted remotely. Our
staff are available by e-mail, and the Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions are
convening remotely. The public is encouraged to participate. Find more information on our
services here. 
 

From: Westhoff, Alex (CPC) <alex.westhoff@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, August 17, 2021 4:27 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: Please forward to HPC
 
Attached are two public comment letters for tomorrow’s HPC item – 900 Innes. Please forward to
the Historic Preservation Commission. Thank you.
 
Alex Westhoff, AICP (he/him)
Senior Planner | Current Planning and Preservation
Southeast Quadrant
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7314 | www.sfplanning.org
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
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Michael Hamman


702 Earl Street


San Francisco, CA 94124


August 17, 2021

Alex Westoff 


Historic Preservation Commission

alex.westhoff@sfgov.org

RE:  900Innes Avenue (Shipwrights Cottage)

Commissioners:


Today you are discussing the fate of the landmarked Shipwrights Cottage.  While doing so it is important to keep in mind that it was not landmarked because it was a suburb example of our architectural heritage, but rather, because of what went on here.  This was a simple home for one of the workers that crafted the wooden boats that were so important in the development of the Bay Area.  This wooden boat building industry was centered here in India Basin.  Until recently this activity was easy to visualize as there were buildings, water towers, marine ways, etc. remaining that told the story without words.  Today, they are all gone, and so it falls onto this humble building to tell the story of what went on here.  For that reason, I ask that you make as a condition of approval the requirement that the main floor this space be dedicated to telling that story through interpretive displays, dioramas, photographs, etc.    

This is the last chance to ensure that future generations will know about the folks who lived and worked here and how their creative genius, the scow schooner, shaped the area we all call home today.  It is within your power to preserve this history or to allow it to slip away.  

Thank you for your favorable consideration of this request,


Michael Hamman, resident


mhamman@igc.org



900 Innes Shipwrights Cottage

		From

		Sean Karlin

		To

		Westhoff, Alex (CPC)

		Recipients

		alex.westhoff@sfgov.org



 	 This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.



 



Dear Commissioners:





Those of us who live in and around India Basin are pleased to know that the historic Shipwrights Cottage will be preserved and incorporated into the new India Basin Shoreline Park. 





This small cottage is all that remains of our community’s once thriving shipbuilding industry and we are so glad to know that our neighborhood’s history will be passed on to the generations of children and adults who come to enjoy the waterfront. We ask that the Commission ensure that whatever plans SF Rec & Park has for the new shoreline include a bit about the history of India Basin and that it be housed in this cottage. Photos, relics, and maps to tell the story of Hunters Point and San Francisco.





Thank you, 

Sean Karlin  

m.415.265.8691   |  sean.karlin@gmail.com  |  portfolio
















From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Historic Preservation Commission item-900 Innes Avenue
Date: Wednesday, August 18, 2021 8:44:13 AM
Attachments: BHS _900 Innes_081721F_planning copy.pages.pdf

 
 
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, August 17, 2021 9:11 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: FW: Historic Preservation Commission item-900 Innes Avenue
 
Another comment letter to forward to the HPC re: 900 Innes (the Shipwright’s Cottage) for
Wednesday’s hearing. Thank you.
 

From: bvhpwatch@mac.com <bvhpwatch@mac.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, August 17, 2021 8:37 PM
To: Westhoff, Alex (CPC) <alex.westhoff@sfgov.org>
Subject: Historic Preservation Commission item-900 Innes Avenue
 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from
untrusted sources.

Dear Mr. Westoff,
Please include this information in your files for Commissioners in preparation for
the 900 Innes Avenue project - scheduled for discussion on 08 18 21.
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Our Mission:  To identify and preserve the sites and structures of architectural and historic significance in the 
Bayview-Hunters Point District, for the benefit of its residents and for the larger San Francisco community. 


founded in 2004      registered and established public benefit organization: May 1, 2005 
BHS is a non-profit, public benefit organization, verified under Federal Tax I.D. #  20-8093156 


17 August 2021


Mr. Alex Westoff 
San Francisco Historic Preservation Commission
via email to:  alex.westhoff@sfgov.org


Re:  900 Innes Avenue - Shipwrights Cottage


Dear Mr. Westoff,


     The Bayview Historical Society is fully in support of the exterior, interior and ADA 
renovations and improvements required to restore San Francisco Landmark #250, the 
Shipwright’s Cottage at 900 Innes, and to do so in compliance with the Department of 
the Interior requirements.  
     
     Our founder and member familiarity and connection with this area dates back several 
decades.  In 2007, we commissioned the original India Basin Historic Survey, 
authored by Kelly and VerPlank, a document that provides much of the source material 
referenced by all subsequent studies on India Basin Park:  Page &Turnbull, Aecom, 
Northgate, Anchor, Build Inc. and the City EIR.  We’ve also supported the longtime 
efforts by India Basin residents on their advocacy for improving the area, landmarking 
the 900 Innes building, and we recognize their inclusive work in engaging others to 
value this rare and under-appreciated area of the City.  In 2013, we initiated a process 
with the San Francisco Planning Department/ Historic Preservation Commission to cite 
the prior owners of 900 Innes Avenue due to violation of the U.S. Department of the 
Interior ‘Demolition by Neglect’ ordinance.  We later assembled an archival team to 
document the condition of 900 Innes Avenue, corresponding with the owners and 
demanding repairs. Our challenge to SFDBI regarding abatement of those repairs 
resulted in a replacement of the roofing system at 900 Innes, thus saving the building 
from further deterioration and loss at the time.
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     The current, proposed restoration of 900 Innes Avenue presents an opportunity to 
preserve another element of the maritime history of this port city  - but only if we 
recognize that opportunity.  


     In a city that is surrounded by water on nearly 80% of its perimeter, with a history 
that is tied to the San Francisco Bay, we celebrate our City in thousands of restaurants 
and bars and coffee houses, but in only one maritime museum.


     This particular location at 900 Innes is adjacent to what remains of the original India 
Basin Shoreline, an area with a documented history of presence and action by:
the Ohlone, indigenous peoples - with nearby shell mounds dating to 2500 B.C.E.;
the multiple Chinese Shrimp Camps, operating from 1870-1930’s; the Boatyards, 
beginning in 1860’s, including the construction of the Alma, Jack London’s Snark, 
dozens of scow schooners, WWII support craft, and with actions there as recently as 
2007 in the Allemand Bros. yard;  the African American families who moved here from 
the Gulf Coast South beginning in the 1940’s, and their thousands of descendants and 
family members, many of whom live nearby, today.  There is longtime history of work, of 
labor and maritime use that connects India Basin to the larger history of San Francisco. 


     We suggest that retaining a layered memory of the area is particularly important as 
we consider the future use of the 900 Innes Historic Landmark property.  In recent 
years, we seem to be nibbling away, slowly but surely, at preserving the memory of this 
important element of the India Basin history in this great City.   With your guidance, 
perhaps this unfortunate trend of obliterating local history can be reversed. 


     There is also an obvious opportunity to provide longer term employment here 
for young, local residents who have an interest in the shoreline and see 
themselves as a curators of this local history.  Other enterprise opportunities can 
obviously emerge around this effort while supporting preservation of history and 
education.  As the interior programming for the cottage is now under discussion, similar 
and expanded presentations on the India Basin area history is urged here - with some 
consideration for use as a local Martime museum rather than as a somewhat generic 
cafe’ or other, unrelated use.  
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From a simple, pragmatic perspective, emerging technologies allow us to use kiosks, 
virtual 3D projections and other tools in the visitor and welcome area which might serve 
best as as an immersive, albeit small, environment for engaging and educating people 
on the legacy of this forgotten corner of San Francisco.  An open floor area on the upper 
level will allow some flexibility as this use as a small history center evolves over time. 


We include a few additional key points here, and reflect on the numerous studies and 
the historic perspective under review as the park is being planned:


“the former Anderson & Cristofani Boat Yard district appears to be eligible for listing in 
the California Register under Criteria 1 (Events) and 3 (Design/Construction). Although 
deteriorated and threatened with redevelopment, the yard comprises the largest and 
best preserved remaining boat yard in San Francisco and the last remnant of the 
important bay scow building industry..”    
Kelly Ver Planck  India Basin Historic Survey 2007


“ Historic Sites Act  (1935). The Historic Sites Act, Title 16, Section 461 and following 
of the United States Code (16 USC 461 et seq.), declares a national policy to preserve 
historic sites, buildings, antiquities, and objects of national significance, including those 
located on refuges. The Historic Sites Act provides procedures for designation, 
acquisition, administration, and protection of such sites.” and “ California Code of 
Regulations, Title 14, Section 4307. This state preservation law prohibits removal, 
injury, defacement, or destruction of objects of paleontological, archeological, or 
historical interest or value.”


“We believe that the historical interest in the area is supported by the obvious ‘value’ of 
the people and activities which are clearly documented and understood. This 
local, Bayview-based history is largely unknown to many in San Francisco, yet the 
India Basin activities in the late 19th Century are reflective of the actions and passions 
of our City’s pioneers. The India Basin Scow Schooner Boatyard in the best remaining 
physical representation of the area’s significant working class. “                          
PAGE and TURNBULL   IB Historic Evaluation 03/2017 
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“ Indeed, ship building was one of the first and foremost of industries of modern 
San Francisco history, and the most important industry in the Hunters Point 
district. Contrasting with the large shipbuilding firms of Union Iron Works and the 
California Dry Dock, the boat yards of India Basin operated with a traditional system of 
apprenticeship.  Family owned and operated, boat yard owners lived and worked next 
to their employees, many of whom were fellow immigrants or their children.
The yards retain several buildings and structures from the earliest days of the yard and 
much of the machinery remains intact as well, including cranes, winches and maritime 


railways. As such, the yard retains the characteristics of a dwindling and once 
important building type: the small family-run shipyard.”  
Kelly Ver Planck  India Basin Historic Survey 2007


“A resource that has lost its historic character or appearance may still have 
sufficient integrity for the California Register if it maintains the potential to yield 
significant or historical information or specific data.  In regard to industrial 
properties, the seven aspects of integrity in order of importance should be: design, 
association, feeling, location, setting, materials and workmanship. Because the historic 
character of an industrial building or complex depends more on how it conveys the 
organization of work, it is important that enough of the original design, including 
massing, structural systems, and spatial organization, remain intact in order to convey 
how the property was used. Location and setting are important because they 
illustrate how the industry was sited in regard to transportation and roads, 
adjoining properties, and similar industries.”
California Office of Historic Preservation


“The India Basin Scow Schooner Boatyard Vernacular Cultural Landscape 
(schooner boatyard) comprises the landside,shoreline, and nearshore portions of 900 
Innes and the IBSP. The schooner boatyard is eligible for listing in the California 
Register of Historical Resources (CRHR) under Criterion 1: Events, as a period of 
historical significance. It is established by several character-defining features, 
including historical buildings, marine structures, artifacts, and views of the bay.
‘Conceptual Remedial Action Plan’_Northgate; the ‘Remedial Design 
Report’_AnchorQEA   March. 2019
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“It thus appears that the entire study area is of elevated sensitivity for archeological 
resources, both prehistoric and historic . Specifically, there is high potential for buried 
prehistoric archeological deposits in the south-southwestern reaches of the study area, 
corresponding to the area upland of the 1859 shoreline, and elevated sensitivity for 
buried prehistoric archeological resources in the areas lying offshore of the 1859 
shoreline, owing to the presence of possible buried stable landforms beneath the Bay 
Mud. 


These same areas of the study area also have a high potential for harboring 
historic-period archeological resources, particularly those resources associated with 
the 19th- and early-20th-century occupancy of India Basin by early boat builders and 
fisherman.”
Source: City and County of San Francisco September 13, 2017 EIR  India Basin Mixed-
Use Project 3.4-17


We suggest that preserving the extant landmarked building at 900 Innes Avenue is only 
a part of the story of the India Basin Boatyards, and that additional preservation of 
adjacent resources is key to retaining the overall historical significance of the area.


THANK YOU for considering an alternate use for the us 900 Innes Avenue, San 
Francisco Landmark # 250.


Sincerely,


Daniel Dodt
Director, Bayview Historical Society
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Thank you,

Dan Dodt
Bayview Historical Society
+1.415.730.2071
bvhpwatch@mac.com

mailto:bvhpwatch@mac.com


From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO TO OPEN HIGH VOLUME TESTING SITE IN RESPONSE TO RISE

IN COVID-19 CASES
Date: Monday, August 16, 2021 1:48:42 PM
Attachments: 08.16.2021 Testing.pdf

 
 
Jonas P Ionin
Director of Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7589 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map
 
 

From: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Date: Monday, August 16, 2021 at 1:42 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO TO OPEN HIGH VOLUME TESTING SITE IN
RESPONSE TO RISE IN COVID-19 CASES
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, August 16, 2021 
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO TO OPEN HIGH VOLUME TESTING SITE

IN RESPONSE TO RISE IN COVID-19 CASES
The City’s COVID-19 testing site at 7th and Brannan streets will administer 500 tests per day

starting August 18 to help control the spread of the virus
 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and the San Francisco Department of Public
Health (DPH) announced the opening of a high-volume testing site for COVID-19 at 7th and
Brannan Streets in the South of Market neighborhood. With COVID-19 cases rising to an
average of 230 per day, the site will support the City’s demand for testing as an important
tool to slow the spread of the virus and support a timely return to work and school for
individuals exposed to COVID-19.  
 
The site opens on August 18 with the capacity to administer 500 tests per day from 9 a.m. to 6
p.m., seven days a week by appointment only. Drive-thru and walk-up services are available,
and test results will be ready within 24 to 48 hours. The operation will start with two teams
and grow to five by the end of August, allowing for as-needed, additional demand for testing. 
 
“We know that the most important thing people can do to keep themselves and their friends
and family safe is to get vaccinated, but with the Delta variant here and cases at a higher level
than we’d like, testing remains an important part of our strategy to slow the spread of this
virus,” said Mayor Breed. “If you feel sick, have symptoms, or have been in close contact with
someone who has COVID-19, we want to make it easy and convenient for you to get tested.”
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: 


Monday, August 16, 2021   


Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org 


 


*** PRESS RELEASE *** 


SAN FRANCISCO TO OPEN HIGH VOLUME TESTING SITE IN 


RESPONSE TO RISE IN COVID-19 CASES  
The City’s COVID-19 testing site at 7th and Brannan streets will administer 500 tests per day 


starting August 18 to help control the spread of the virus 


 


San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and the San Francisco Department of Public 


Health (DPH) announced the opening of a high-volume testing site for COVID-19 at 7th and 


Brannan Streets in the South of Market neighborhood. With COVID-19 cases rising to an 


average of 230 per day, the site will support the City’s demand for testing as an important 


tool to slow the spread of the virus and support a timely return to work and school for individuals 


exposed to COVID-19.   


  


The site opens on August 18 with the capacity to administer 500 tests per day from 9 a.m. to 6 


p.m., seven days a week by appointment only. Drive-thru and walk-up services are available, 


and test results will be ready within 24 to 48 hours. The operation will start with two teams and 


grow to five by the end of August, allowing for as-needed, additional demand for testing.  


 


“We know that the most important thing people can do to keep themselves and their friends and 


family safe is to get vaccinated, but with the Delta variant here and cases at a higher level than 


we’d like, testing remains an important part of our strategy to slow the spread of this virus,” said 


Mayor Breed. “If you feel sick, have symptoms, or have been in close contact with someone who 


has COVID-19, we want to make it easy and convenient for you to get tested.” 


 


DPH is reserving appointments slots for disaster service workers who have been exposed to the 


virus as close contacts and for individuals involved in potential outbreaks of three or more 


individuals from separate households. The general public may make appointments, but 


are strongly encouraged to first seek tests from their health care provider if they have one 


or purchase rapid home-testing kits that have become widely available.  


  


Today, DPH also launched the COVID Resource Center to offer isolation and 


quarantine support for those who test positive for COVID-19 or are in close contact, including 


temporary housing, food delivery, cleaning supplies, and financial assistance for those who need 


it. The service can be reached at 628-217-6101.  


 


Additionally, DPH plans to issue a health order later this week requiring large healthcare 


facilities in the City to provide testing for patients, specifically those entities with acute care 


hospitals and associated clinics, offices, or urgent care centers, and medical practices with at 
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least 100 licensed healthcare providers. The order is designed to ensure that private health 


providers contribute fully to the City’s COVID-19 testing infrastructure.  
    


The testing site brings the City’s current capacity to approximately 5,000 tests per day, provided 


by the San Francisco Health Network (SFHN) and other community and DPH-affiliated sites for 


individuals who are uninsured or who otherwise lack access to care. Of all analyzed tests in the 


City for San Francisco residents, DPH is currently administering 29%, though the SFHN is the 


primary provider for less than 10% of the population in San Francisco. The City’s testing volume 


between CityTest, Community sites and SFHN sites is 5 to 10 times what each of the private 


health systems is doing daily. 


 


The Delta variant has brought new challenges to the City as it battles back the virus while 


keeping businesses and schools safely open.  


  


“We are responding to this fourth surge in COVID-19 by doing what we know works best – and 


that is vaccinations, indoor masking, and expanding our testing capacity once again with this 


new high-volume testing site,” said Director of Health, Dr. Grant Colfax. “We are opening the 


new SOMA testing site to meet our highest needs, and to serve those in the City who have been 


most impacted by COVID and who have the least access to care. We request that our City 


residents with insurance first seek out tests with their health care providers or through readily-


available home test kits. We also ask our health care system to do their part for their 


patients, as COVID will be with us in some form for the foreseeable future.”  


  


The SoMa testing site is a partnership between DPH and Color Health, which is providing testing 


services, and Carbon Health, which is providing staffing.  


  


San Francisco follows the recently updated US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 


(CDC) guidance which recommends people who are fully vaccinated get tested three to five 


days after a potential exposure even if they have no symptoms. People who are not fully 


vaccinated should be tested immediately after being identified, and, if negative, be tested again 


in 5 to 7 days after their last exposure or immediately if symptoms develop during quarantine.   


  


To make an appointment at the SoMa testing site, or to find other testing sites that are free of 


charge, no insurance required, visit sf.gov/gettested. Individuals with a health care provider 


should schedule a test with them.  


 


Individuals testing positive for COVID-19 or who are identified as a close contact to someone 


who has tested positive, will receive a link to the CalConnect Virtual Assistant (called the 


"VA"); we request that all San Franciscans who receive this link complete it. For information on 


what to do after a positive COVID test or exposure to the virus, go to: sfdph.org/dph/COVID-


19/Isolation-and-Quarantine.asp. 


 


### 
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DPH is reserving appointments slots for disaster service workers who have been exposed to
the virus as close contacts and for individuals involved in potential outbreaks of three or more
individuals from separate households. The general public may make appointments, but
are strongly encouraged to first seek tests from their health care provider if they have one
or purchase rapid home-testing kits that have become widely available. 
 
Today, DPH also launched the COVID Resource Center to offer isolation and
quarantine support for those who test positive for COVID-19 or are in close contact, including
temporary housing, food delivery, cleaning supplies, and financial assistance for those who
need it. The service can be reached at 628-217-6101. 
 
Additionally, DPH plans to issue a health order later this week requiring large healthcare
facilities in the City to provide testing for patients, specifically those entities with acute care
hospitals and associated clinics, offices, or urgent care centers, and medical practices with at
least 100 licensed healthcare providers. The order is designed to ensure that private health
providers contribute fully to the City’s COVID-19 testing infrastructure. 
   
The testing site brings the City’s current capacity to approximately 5,000 tests per day,
provided by the San Francisco Health Network (SFHN) and other community and DPH-
affiliated sites for individuals who are uninsured or who otherwise lack access to care. Of all
analyzed tests in the City for San Francisco residents, DPH is currently administering 29%,
though the SFHN is the primary provider for less than 10% of the population in San Francisco.
The City’s testing volume between CityTest, Community sites and SFHN sites is 5 to 10 times
what each of the private health systems is doing daily.
 
The Delta variant has brought new challenges to the City as it battles back the virus while
keeping businesses and schools safely open. 
 
“We are responding to this fourth surge in COVID-19 by doing what we know works best –
and that is vaccinations, indoor masking, and expanding our testing capacity once again with
this new high-volume testing site,” said Director of Health, Dr. Grant Colfax. “We are opening
the new SOMA testing site to meet our highest needs, and to serve those in the City who have
been most impacted by COVID and who have the least access to care. We request
that our City residents with insurance first seek out tests with their health care providers or
through readily-available home test kits. We also ask our health care system to do their part
for their patients, as COVID will be with us in some form for the foreseeable future.” 
 
The SoMa testing site is a partnership between DPH and Color Health, which is providing
testing services, and Carbon Health, which is providing staffing. 
 
San Francisco follows the recently updated US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
(CDC) guidance which recommends people who are fully vaccinated get tested three to five
days after a potential exposure even if they have no symptoms. People who are not fully
vaccinated should be tested immediately after being identified, and, if negative, be tested
again in 5 to 7 days after their last exposure or immediately if symptoms develop during
quarantine.  
 
To make an appointment at the SoMa testing site, or to find other testing sites that are free of
charge, no insurance required, visit sf.gov/gettested. Individuals with a health care provider



should schedule a test with them. 
 
Individuals testing positive for COVID-19 or who are identified as a close contact to someone
who has tested positive, will receive a link to the CalConnect Virtual Assistant (called the
"VA"); we request that all San Franciscans who receive this link complete it. For information
on what to do after a positive COVID test or exposure to the virus, go
to: sfdph.org/dph/COVID-19/Isolation-and-Quarantine.asp.
 

###
 
 
 

https://www.sfdph.org/dph/COVID-19/Isolation-and-Quarantine.asp


 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from
untrusted sources.

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Lynch, Laura (CPC)
Subject: FW: CBPRC Letter in Support of Removal of Kearny Street Pedestrian Bridge (CPC-HPC) (Draft EIR).DOC
Date: Monday, August 16, 2021 10:56:41 AM

Per Commission President Matsuda’s request.
 
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
 
 

From: "Matsuda, Diane (CPC)" <diane.matsuda@sfgov.org>
Date: Monday, August 16, 2021 at 10:55 AM
To: "Lynch, Laura (CPC)" <laura.lynch@sfgov.org>, "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)"
<jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Subject: Fw: CBPRC Letter in Support of Removal of Kearny Street Pedestrian Bridge (CPC-
HPC) (Draft EIR).DOC
 
Please forward to the rest of the HPC.  Thanks
 
 

From: Diane Matsuda <dmatsuda@apilegaloutreach.org>
Sent: Monday, August 16, 2021 10:50 AM
To: Tan Chow <tandchow@gmail.com>; Matsuda, Diane (CPC) <diane.matsuda@sfgov.org>
Subject: Re: CBPRC Letter in Support of Removal of Kearny Street Pedestrian Bridge (CPC-HPC) (Draft
EIR).DOC
 

 

Thank you for your email message and attachments.  I will forward this to our Commission Secretary
so that the other HPC Commissioners will be able to review it.
 
Take care
 
Sincerely,
Diane Matsuda
HPC
 
On Mon, Aug 16, 2021 at 9:01 AM Tan Chow <tandchow@gmail.com> wrote:

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:laura.lynch@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
mailto:tandchow@gmail.com


華埠公園康樂會
Committee for Better Parks and Recreation in Chinatown

 

August 16, 2021

 

President Diane Matsuda

Historic Preservation Commission

49 Van Ness Avenue, 14th Floor

San Francisco, California 94103

 

Re:​Letter in Support of Removal of Private Kearny Street Pedestrian Bridge

​Case No. 2018-013597 ENV

​Item 7, Historic Preservation Commission

 

Dear President Matsuda, 

 

The Committee for Better Parks and Recreation in
Chinatown (CBPRC) strongly supports the removal of the pedestrian bridge over
Kearny Street connecting the Hilton Financial District Hotel to Portsmouth
Square (the “PrivateKearny Street Bridge”).  The Private Kearny Street Bridge
has outlived its public useful life and must make way for the new vision for
Portsmouth Square.

 

Founded in 1969, Committee for Better Parks and Recreation in Chinatown
(CBPRC) has advocated for open space and recreation areas in
Chinatown.  Because of Chinatown’s high density, open space and parks are



an especially important and a limited resource to our community.  Our committee
members have a long history of being engaged and active in the community
processes in Chinatown including the renovation ofmany San
Francisco Recreation and Park facilities and open spaces. Our members include
volunteer architects, district council staff, community youth organizations,
community childcare providers, and community members, as well as staff from
neighborhood service providers like Chinatown Community Development
Center, Community Youth Center, Self-Help for the Elderly, Community Tenants
Association, Kai Ming Headstart.

 

There is a new vision for Portsmouth Square and this new vision is created
by, supported by, and designed for residents, park users, and a wide majority of
the Chinatown community.  Enclosed is a copy of the vision for Portsmouth
Square.  This vision is the result of over 8 years of community engagement,
capital needs assessments, current and projected use studies, planning and design. 
The San Francisco Recreation and Park Department conducted extensive outreach
with stakeholders and hosted five (5) well attended public workshops over a
period of more than two (2) years.  The overwhelming majority support a
vision for Portsmouth Square that does not include the Private Kearny Street
Bridge. (A copy of the new vision for Portsmouth Square is enclosed.)

 

The removal of the Private Kearny Street Bridge will result in the creation
of over 20,000 square feet of new outdoor and park space and over 8,000 square
feet of indoor community space.Chinatown is the most densely
populated area west of Manhattan and has one of the lowest park and recreation
space per capita in the City as well as one the highest poverty rates in the City.
  Many of the Chinatown residents are elderly and live in single-room occupancy
units and in very cramped living conditions. The expansion of outdoor and park
space and community space is crucial for Chinatown seniors, residents, families,
children and park users.  

 

The Private Kearny Street Bridge is an ill-conceived design and its removal will
vastly improve the urban landscape.  The removal of the Private Kearny Street
Bridge will create sunlight to public areas, will open public vistas and corridors
from North Beach to the Financial District, and expand uses of public spaces.
 The Private Kearny Street Bridge is an outdated fixture of brutalist architecture
typical of the redevelopment periodsavagely imposed on Chinatown and
completely ignoring the culturally sensitive context in which it occupies.  The



removal of the Private Kearny Street Bridge will at last repair this urban scar and
make way for a bold community design that is complimentary
to Chinatown architectural design.

 

The Private Kearny Street Bridge is not dedicated for a public purpose.  The
Private Kearny Street Bridge has been increasingly used for private purposes
to the exclusion of the public (Photographs of private use are enclosed).   Often,
the gates to the Private Kearny Street Bridge are closed.  There is no
remuneration to the City or the public for the existence of the Private Kearny
Street Bridge.  

 

It is recognized that the removal of the Private Kearny Street Bridge could have
some short-term impact to the access to the Chinese Cultural Center.  The
Chinese Cultural Center is located on the third floor of the Hilton Hotel Financial
District and is accessible through a lobby shared by the hotel and the Chinese
Cultural Center.  It is in part accessible by the Private Kearny Street Bridge but is
also and will continue to be accessible through stairways, escalators, and
elevators through the Hilton Hotel Financial District. Any impacted access to the
Chinese Culture Center could be mitigated by a possible mid-block crossing
from the Portsmouth Garage to the Chinese Culture Center, by strategically
placed signage on Kearny Street directing pedestrian traffic, and by a
better partnership between Chinese Culture Center and Justice Investors, the
owner of the Hilton Hotel Financial District.  

 

The license for access and use of the Private Kearny Street Bridge is revocable
and the public and community benefit of the removal of the Private Kearny Street
Bridge outweighs any private use or access of the Private Kearny Street Bridge.

 

The Private Kearny Street Bridge exists under a Street Encroachment Agreement,
dated May 7, 1970 (a copy of the agreement is enclosed).  Paragraph 3 of the
General Provisions of the Street Encroachment Agreement states:

 

​“3.​The permission granted by said resolution is merely a revocable
license.  The Board of Supervisors may revoke said permission at will,
and, upon the revocation thereof, the undersigned Permittees, their heirs



and assigns, will within 30 days after written notification of the
revocation of said permission, will remove or cause to be removed the
encroachment permitted by said resolution and all materials used in
connection with its  construction without expense to the City and
County of San Francisco, and restore to a condition satisfactory to the
Department of Public Works.”

 

The draft environmental impact report is legally comprehensive and outlines
mitigation measures for the removal of the Private Kearny Street Bridge.  The
Committee for Better Parks and Recreation in Chinatown wholeheartedly
supports the removal of the Private Kearny Street Bridge.  The Private Kearny
Street Bridge has outlived its 1970 brutalism purpose and we should allow for a
new vision for Portsmouth Square expanding open space in the densest
neighborhood in the City and creating new community space and programs for
Chinatown.

 

Best,

 

 

Phil Chin

on behalf of Committee for Better Parks and Recreation in Chinatown

 

Enclosures

​1.​Portsmouth Square Vision Plan

​2.​Photographs of Private Use of Private Kearny Street Bridge

​3.​Private Kearny Street Bridge Encroachment Permit

 

cc:​

 

​Commissioners



​Historic Preservation Commission

​(via email/w/copy of encls.)

 

​District 3 Supervisor Aaron Peskin

​(via email/w/copy of encls.)

 

​Phil Ginsburg

​San Francisco Park and Recreation Department

​(via email/w/copy of encls.)

 

​Malcolm Yeung

​Chinatown Community Development Center

​(via email/w/copy of encls.)

 

 

153481292.1

 

 

 
Open Space should be Open! 
History of hotel’s bridge gated privatization use created systematic inequity for vulnerable
community residents and Chinatown, and a massive concrete bridge brutally cast shadow, wind
and takes away limited open space and uses.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
Street Encroachment Agreement PDF:
 
 
CBPRC letter PDF:
 

Sent from my iPhone



  This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Taylor, Michelle (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: CBPRC Letter in Support of Removal of Kearny Street Pedestrian Bridge (CPC-HPC) (Draft EIR).DOC
Date: Monday, August 16, 2021 10:39:13 AM
Attachments: Street Encroachment Agreement.pdf

CBPRC Letter in Support of Removal of Kearny Street Pedestrian Bridge (CPC-HPC) (Draft EIR).DOC

 
 
 
Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

 
Expanded in-person services at the Permit Center at 49 South Van Ness Avenue are available. Most other San Francisco Planning functions are being conducted remotely. Our staff are available by e-mail, and the Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions are convening remotely. The public is encouraged to participate. Find more information on our services here. 
 

From: Tan Chow <tandchow@gmail.com> 
Sent: Monday, August 16, 2021 9:01 AM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; dmatsuda@apilegaloutreach.org
Cc: Ginsburg, Phil (REC) <phil.ginsburg@sfgov.org>; Peskin, Aaron (BOS) <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>; Ko, Albert (DPW) <Albert.J.Ko@sfdpw.org>; myeung@chinatowncdc.org; Anni Chung <annic@selfhelpelderly.org>; DPH-sarahw <sarahw@cycsf.org>; Phil Chin <stpawz99@yahoo.com>; Sunny <sunny.angulo@gmail.com>; Allan Low <ALow@perkinscoie.com>; Ruppert, Cara (REC) <cara.ruppert@sfgov.org>; Tan Chow <tandchow@gmail.com>
Subject: CBPRC Letter in Support of Removal of Kearny Street Pedestrian Bridge (CPC-HPC) (Draft EIR).DOC
 

 

﻿

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
 
The Committee for Better Parks and Recreation in Chinatown (CBPRC) strongly supports the removal of the pedestrian bridge over Kearny Street connecting the Hilton Financial District Hotel to Portsmouth Square (the “PrivateKearny Street Bridge”).  The Private Kearny Street Bridge has outlived its public useful life and must make way for the new vision for Portsmouth Square.
 
Founded in 1969, Committee for Better Parks and Recreation in Chinatown (CBPRC) has advocated for open space and recreation areas in Chinatown.  Because of Chinatown’s high density, open space and parks are an especially important and a limited resource to our community.  Our committee members have a long history of being engaged and active in the community processes in Chinatown including the renovation ofmany San Francisco Recreation and Park facilities and open spaces. Our members include volunteer architects, district council
staff, community youth organizations, community childcare providers, and community members, as well as staff from neighborhood service providers like Chinatown Community Development Center, Community Youth Center, Self-Help for the Elderly, Community Tenants Association, Kai Ming Headstart.
 
There is a new vision for Portsmouth Square and this new vision is created by, supported by, and designed for residents, park users, and a wide majority of the Chinatown community.  Enclosed is a copy of the vision for Portsmouth Square.  This vision is the result of over 8 years of community engagement, capital needs assessments, current and projected use studies, planning and design.  The San Francisco Recreation and Park Department conducted extensive outreach with stakeholders and hosted five (5) well attended public workshops over a
period of more than two (2) years.  The overwhelming majority support a vision for Portsmouth Square that does not include the Private Kearny Street Bridge. (A copy of the new vision for Portsmouth Square is enclosed.)
 
The removal of the Private Kearny Street Bridge will result in the creation of over 20,000 square feet of new outdoor and park space and over 8,000 square feet of indoor community space.Chinatown is the most densely populated area west of Manhattan and has one of the lowest park and recreation space per capita in the City as well as one the highest poverty rates in the City.   Many of the Chinatown residents are elderly and live in single-room occupancy units and in very cramped living conditions. The expansion of outdoor and park space and
community space is crucial for Chinatown seniors, residents, families, children and park users.  
 
The Private Kearny Street Bridge is an ill-conceived design and its removal will vastly improve the urban landscape.  The removal of the Private Kearny Street Bridge will create sunlight to public areas, will open public vistas and corridors from North Beach to the Financial District, and expand uses of public spaces.  The Private Kearny Street Bridge is an outdated fixture of brutalist architecture typical of the redevelopment periodsavagely imposed on Chinatown and completely ignoring the culturally sensitive context in which it occupies.  The
removal of the Private Kearny Street Bridge will at last repair this urban scar and make way for a bold community design that is complimentary to Chinatown architectural design.
 
The Private Kearny Street Bridge is not dedicated for a public purpose.  The Private Kearny Street Bridge has been increasingly used for private purposes to the exclusion of the public (Photographs of private use are enclosed).   Often, the gates to the Private Kearny Street Bridge are closed.  There is no remuneration to the City or the public for the existence of the Private Kearny Street Bridge.  
 
It is recognized that the removal of the Private Kearny Street Bridge could have some short-term impact to the access to the Chinese Cultural Center.  The Chinese Cultural Center is located on the third floor of the Hilton Hotel Financial District and is accessible through a lobby shared by the hotel and the Chinese Cultural Center.  It is in part accessible by the Private Kearny Street Bridge but is also and will continue to be accessible through stairways, escalators, and elevators through the Hilton Hotel Financial District. Any impacted access to the
Chinese Culture Center could be mitigated by a possible mid-block crossing from the Portsmouth Garage to the Chinese Culture Center, by strategically placed signage on Kearny Street directing pedestrian traffic, and by a better partnership between Chinese Culture Center and Justice Investors, the owner of the Hilton Hotel Financial District.  
 
The license for access and use of the Private Kearny Street Bridge is revocable and the public and community benefit of the removal of the Private Kearny Street Bridge outweighs any private use or access of the Private Kearny Street Bridge.
 
The Private Kearny Street Bridge exists under a Street Encroachment Agreement, dated May 7, 1970 (a copy of the agreement is enclosed).  Paragraph 3 of the General Provisions of the Street Encroachment Agreement states:
 

​“3.​The permission granted by said resolution is merely a revocable license.  The Board of Supervisors may revoke said permission at will, and, upon the revocation thereof, the undersigned Permittees, their heirs and assigns, will within 30 days after written notification of the revocation of said permission, will remove or cause to be removed the encroachment permitted by said resolution and all materials used in connection with its  construction without expense to the City and County of San Francisco, and restore to a condition satisfactory
to the Department of Public Works.”

 
The draft environmental impact report is legally comprehensive and outlines mitigation measures for the removal of the Private Kearny Street Bridge.  The Committee for Better Parks and Recreation in Chinatown wholeheartedly supports the removal of the Private Kearny Street Bridge.  The Private Kearny Street Bridge has outlived its 1970 brutalism purpose and we should allow for a new vision for Portsmouth Square expanding open space in the densest neighborhood in the City and creating new community space and programs for Chinatown.
 
Best,
 
 
Phil Chin
on behalf of Committee for Better Parks and Recreation in Chinatown
 
Enclosures
​1. ​Portsmouth Square Vision Plan
​2. ​Photographs of Private Use of Private Kearny Street Bridge
​3. ​Private Kearny Street Bridge Encroachment Permit
 
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
History of hotel’s bridge gated privatization use created systematic inequity for vulnerable community residents and Chinatown, and a massive concrete bridge brutally cast shadow, wind and takes away limited open space and uses.

 
 

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:Michelle.Taylor@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
https://sfplanning.org/staff-directory
https://sfplanning.org/node/1978
https://sfplanning.org/covid-19
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

San Francisco, California 94103

Re:
Letter in Support of Removal of Private Kearny Street Pedestrian Bridge


Case No. 2018-013597 ENV


Item 7, Historic Preservation Commission


Dear President Matsuda, 

 


The Committee for Better Parks and Recreation in Chinatown (CBPRC) strongly supports the removal of the pedestrian bridge over Kearny Street connecting the Hilton Financial District Hotel to Portsmouth Square (the “Private Kearny Street Bridge”).  The Private Kearny Street Bridge has outlived its public useful life and must make way for the new vision for Portsmouth Square.

 


Founded in 1969, Committee for Better Parks and Recreation in Chinatown (CBPRC) has advocated for open space and recreation areas in Chinatown.  Because of Chinatown’s high density, open space and parks are an especially important and a limited resource to our community.  Our committee members have a long history of being engaged and active in the community processes in Chinatown including the renovation of many San Francisco Recreation and Park facilities and open spaces.  Our members include volunteer architects, district council staff, community youth organizations, community childcare providers, and community members, as well as staff from neighborhood service providers like Chinatown Community Development Center, Community Youth Center, and Self-Help for the Elderly.

 


There is a new vision for Portsmouth Square and this new vision is created by, supported by, and designed for residents, park users, and a wide majority of the Chinatown community.  Enclosed is a copy of the vision for Portsmouth Square.  This vision is the result of over 8 years of community engagement, capital needs assessments, current and projected use studies, planning and design.  The San Francisco Recreation and Park Department conducted extensive outreach with stakeholders and hosted five (5) public workshops over a period of more than two (2) years.  The overwhelming majority support a vision for Portsmouth Square that does not include the Private Kearny Street Bridge. (A copy of the new vision for Portsmouth Square is enclosed.)

The removal of the Private Kearny Street Bridge will result in the creation of over 20,000 square feet of new outdoor and park space and over 8,000 square feet of indoor community space.  Chinatown is the most densely populated area west of Manhattan and has one of the lowest park and recreation space per capita in the City as well as one the highest poverty rates in the City.   Many of the Chinatown residents are elderly and live in single-room occupancy units and in very cramped living conditions. The expansion of outdoor and park space and community space is crucial for Chinatown seniors, residents, families, children and park users.  

The Private Kearny Street Bridge is an ill-conceived design and its removal will vastly improve the urban landscape.  The removal of the Private Kearny Street Bridge will create sunlight to public areas, will open public vistas and corridors from North Beach to the Financial District, and expand uses of public spaces.  The Private Kearny Street Bridge is an outdated fixture of brutalist architecture typical of the redevelopment period savagely imposed on Chinatown and completely ignoring the culturally sensitive context in which it occupies.  The removal of the Private Kearny Street Bridge will at last repair this urban scar and make way for a bold community design that is complimentary to Chinatown architectural design. 

The Private Kearny Street Bridge is not dedicated for a public purpose.  The Private Kearny Street Bridge has been increasingly used for private purposes to the exclusion of the public (Photographs of private use are enclosed).   Often, the gates to the Private Kearny Street Bridge are closed.  There is no remuneration to the City or the public for the existence of the Private Kearny Street Bridge.  

It is recognized that the removal of the Private Kearny Street Bridge could have some short-term impact to the access to the Chinese Cultural Center.  The Chinese Cultural Center is located on the third floor of the Hilton Hotel Financial District and is accessible through a lobby shared by the hotel and the Chinese Cultural Center.  It is in part accessible by the Private Kearny Street Bridge but is also and will continue to be accessible through stairways, escalators, and elevators through the Hilton Hotel Financial District.  Any impacted access to the Chinese Culture Center could be mitigated by a possible mid-block crossing from the Portsmouth Garage to the Chinese Culture Center, by strategically placed signage on Kearny Street directing pedestrian traffic, and by a better partnership between Chinese Culture Center and Justice Investors, the owner of the Hilton Hotel Financial District.  

The license for access and use of the Private Kearny Street Bridge is revocable and the public and community benefit of the removal of the Private Kearny Street Bridge outweighs any private use or access of the Private Kearny Street Bridge.

The Private Kearny Street Bridge exists under a Street Encroachment Agreement, dated May 7, 1970 (a copy of the agreement is enclosed).  Paragraph 3 of the General Provisions of the Street Encroachment Agreement states:



“3.
The permission granted by said resolution is merely a revocable license.  The Board of Supervisors may revoke said permission at will, and, upon the revocation thereof, the undersigned Permittees, their heirs and assigns, will within 30 days after written notification of the revocation of said permission, will remove or cause to be removed the encroachment permitted by said resolution and all materials used in connection with its  construction without expense to the City and County of San Francisco, and restore to a condition satisfactory to the Department of Public Works.”

The draft environmental impact report is legally comprehensive and outlines mitigation measures for the removal of the Private Kearny Street Bridge.  The Committee for Better Parks and Recreation in Chinatown wholeheartedly supports the removal of the Private Kearny Street Bridge.  The Private Kearny Street Bridge has outlived its 1970 brutalism purpose and we should allow for a new vision for Portsmouth Square expanding open space in the densest neighborhood in the City and creating new community space and programs for Chinatown.


Best,


[image: image1.emf]

Phil Chin

on behalf of Committee for Better Parks and Recreation in Chinatown

Enclosures


1.
Portsmouth Square Vision Plan



2.
Photographs of Private Use of Private Kearny Street Bridge



3.
Private Kearny Street Bridge Encroachment Permit


cc:



Commissioners



Historic Preservation Commission


(via email/w/copy of encls.)



District 3 Supervisor Aaron Peskin



(via email/w/copy of encls.) 



Phil Ginsburg



San Francisco Park and Recreation Department



(via email/w/copy of encls.)



Malcolm Yeung


Chinatown Community Development Center



(via email/w/copy of encls.)
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Street Encroachment Agreement PDF:
 
 
CBPRC letter PDF:
 

Sent from my iPhone



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: NOTICE: Recology - Gifts and Behested Payments
Date: Monday, August 16, 2021 10:13:26 AM
Attachments: 08.10.21 Recology - Gifts and Behested Payments.pdf

 
 
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
 
 

From: "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Date: Friday, August 13, 2021 at 9:43 AM
Subject: FW: NOTICE: Recology - Gifts and Behested Payments
 
FYI
 
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
 
 

From: "Peacock, Rebecca (MYR)" <rebecca.peacock@sfgov.org>
Date: Thursday, August 12, 2021 at 11:58 AM
Cc: "Fennell, Tyra (MYR)" <tyra.fennell@sfgov.org>
Subject: FW: NOTICE: Recology - Gifts and Behested Payments
 

Hello Commission Secretaries and Policy Body Administrators,
 
Please see below message and attached memo from the City Attorney.
We recommended you disseminate this memo to your commissioners
and committee members.
 
Thank you!
 
-RP
----------------------------------------------------------------

Rebecca Peacock (they/them)

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
https://pronoun.is/they



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 
 


 


DENNIS J. HERRERA 
City Attorney 


ANDREW SHEN 
Deputy City Attorney 
 
Direct Dial: (415) 554-4780 
Email: andrew.shen@sfcityatty.org 
 


MEMORANDUM 
 


   
CITY HALL ∙ 1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PL., SUITE 234 ∙ SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-5408 


RECEPTION:  (415) 554-4700 ∙ FACSIMILE:  (415) 554-4745 
 


n:\cxlit3\as2021\2100220\01548643.docx  


TO: ALL CITY ELECTED OFFICIALS 
ALL CITY BOARD AND COMMISSION MEMBERS 
ALL CITY DEPARTMENT HEADS 


FROM: Ronald P. Flynn 
 Chief Deputy City Attorney 
 Yvonne R. Meré 


Chief of Complex and Affirmative Litigation 
 Keslie Stewart 


Head Attorney for Public Integrity 
 Andrew Shen 


Head Attorney, Ethics and Elections 
DATE: August 10, 2021 
RE: Recology - Gifts and Behested Payments 
 


On March 3, 2021, the City and Recology San Francisco, Sunset Scavenger Company, 
and Golden Gate Disposal & Recycling Company (collectively “SF Recology Companies”) 
entered into a Settlement Agreement resolving claims related to SF Recology Companies’ 
overcollection of refuse collection funds assessed against San Francisco residents and businesses 
between July 1, 2017 and March 31, 2021.  As you are likely aware, under the Settlement 
Agreement, the SF Recology Companies will reimburse ratepayers approximately $94 million, 
including interest, for these overpayments. 


On June 30, 2021, Judge Schulman of the San Francisco Superior Court approved and 
entered a Stipulated Injunction and Consent Judgment regarding the SF Recology Companies 
overcollection.   


Under the Stipulated Injunction, the SF Recology Companies are ordered to comply with 
disclosure requirements as well as the following ethics-related restrictions.  For four years, or 
until June 30, 2025, the SF Recology Companies cannot: 


• make any gift of any value to any City employee or officer; or  
• make any payment of any value made at the behest of any City employee or officer. 
For the purposes of the Stipulated Injunction, a “gift” is defined according to State law.  


In general, a gift is any item or payment received by a public official for which the public official 
does not provide equal or greater consideration.  Cal. Gov. Code § 82028; 2 C.C.R. § 18942.  
Likewise, consistent with State and local law, a “behested payment” is defined as any payment 
made “at the behest of” a City employee or officer, or an agent thereof, for any governmental or 
charitable purpose.  See Cal. Gov. Code § 82004.5; S.F. Campaign & Governmental Conduct 
Code § 3.600.  The Stipulated Injunction defines “at the behest of” as “under the control or at the 
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direction of, in cooperation, consultation, coordination, or concert with, at the request or 
suggestion of, or with the express, prior consent of.”  “City officer” includes any City elective 
officer, City commissioner, and City department head.  See S.F. Campaign & Governmental 
Conduct Code § 3.203. 


Note that these restrictions on gifts and behested payments do not apply solely to City 
departments, officers, and employees who have a direct contractual or regulatory relationship 
with the SF Recology Companies.  These restrictions apply to all City officers and employees, 
regardless of the nature of their relationship with the SF Recology Companies.  Under the 
Stipulated Injunction, the SF Recology Companies may continue to make charitable 
contributions to any 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization, if such charitable contributions are not 
made at the behest of a City employee or officer. 


But under this Stipulated Injunction, for example, the SF Recology Companies cannot: 
• take a group of City employees or officers out for dinner; 
• pay for a group of City employees or officers to attend a sporting event or luncheon; 
• make a charitable contribution to a local 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization, at the 


request of a City elected official; or 
• make a donation to a City program, or a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization operating as 


a “friends group” for a City department, at the request of a City employee or officer. 
The Stipulated Injunction applies to the SF Recology Companies, not to any City 


departments, officers or employees.  Nonetheless, the Stipulated Injunction’s terms will bear on 
the SF Recology Companies’ interactions with City officials, and may alter your and your 
department’s requests of the SF Recology Companies.  The SF Recology Companies bear the 
responsibility of abiding by the terms of the Stipulated Injunction, but the cooperation of City 
officers and employees with the Stipulated Injunction’s restrictions would further compliance 
with these Court-enforced rules.  Also, if you learn of potential violations of the Stipulated 
Injunction by the SF Recology Companies, please contact the City Attorney’s Office.  For your 
reference, a copy of the Stipulated Injunction approved and entered by the court is attached. 


Lastly, the Stipulated Injunction does not replace or supersede any otherwise applicable 
ethics and gift laws that may apply to the SF Recology Companies.  Guidance about these laws is 
available in the City Attorney’s Office’s Good Government Guide, available under the “Good 
Government” tab at sfcityattorney.org. 


If you have any questions, please contact Deputy City Attorney Andrew Shen at 
andrew.shen@sfcityatty.org. 
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Office of Mayor London N. Breed
 
From: Peacock, Rebecca (MYR) 
Sent: Thursday, August 12, 2021 11:30
Cc: Fennell, Tyra (MYR) <tyra.fennell@sfgov.org>; Heckel, Hank (MYR) <Hank.Heckel@sfgov.org>;
SHEN, ANDREW (CAT) <Andrew.Shen@sfcityatty.org>
Subject: NOTICE: Recology - Gifts and Behested Payments
 

Dear Commissioners and Board Members,
 
Earlier this year, the City and Recology San Francisco, Sunset
Scavenger Company, and Golden Gate Disposal & Recycling Company
(the “SF Recology Companies”) entered into a Settlement Agreement
resolving claims related to the SF Recology Companies’ overcollection
of refuse collection payments. In connection with this Settlement
Agreement, the City and the SF Recology Companies also agreed to a
Stipulated Injunction that imposes ethics-related restrictions. 
 
Under the Stipulated Injunction, as described in the attached memo, for
four years (or until June 30, 2025), the SF Recology Companies cannot:

make any gift of any value to any City employee or officer,
including Board and Commission members; or
make any payment of any value made at the behest of any City
employee or officer, including Board and Commission members.

 
If you have any questions, please contact Deputy City Attorney Andrew
Shen at Andrew.shen@sfcityatty.org.
 
----------------------------------------------------------------

Rebecca Peacock (they/them)
Office of Mayor London N. Breed
Legislative & Government Affairs
City & County of San Francisco
 

mailto:Andrew.shen@sfcityatty.org
https://pronoun.is/they


 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Westhoff, Alex (CPC)
Subject: FW: Public Comment: 2020-009076COA 900 Innes Avenue (Shipwright’s Cottage)
Date: Monday, August 16, 2021 9:11:44 AM
Attachments: IBNA Letter to HPC August 2021.pdf

 
 
 
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
 
Hello,
 
Please forward this to the Historic Preservation Commission in advance of Wednesday’s hearing.
Thank you.
 
Alex
 

From: Jill Fox <jlfox713@gmail.com> 
Sent: Saturday, August 14, 2021 2:12 PM
To: Westhoff, Alex (CPC) <alex.westhoff@sfgov.org>
Cc: Angsuco, Charlene (REC) <charlene.angsuco@sfgov.org>
Subject: Public Comment: 2020-009076COA 900 Innes Avenue (Shipwright’s Cottage)
 

 

Please see below (letter is also attached)
 
August 14, 2021
 
TO: Alex Westhoff for Historic Preservation Commission
VIA: email alex.westhoff@sfgov.org

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:alex.westhoff@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
https://sfplanning.org/staff-directory
https://sfplanning.org/node/1978
https://sfplanning.org/covid-19
mailto:jlfox713@gmail.com
mailto:alex.westhoff@sfgov.org
mailto:charlene.angsuco@sfgov.org
mailto:alex.westhoff@sfgov.org



 


P.O. Box 880953 · San Francisco, CA   94188 · INDIABASIN.org 
 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS: Jill Fox · Michael Hamman · Sean Karlin · Max Khusid · Richard Laufman · Monica Padilla-Stemmelen 


I N D I A  B ASI N   
Neighborhood Association 


Advocating for  our communi ty since 1994  


 


A d v o c a t i n g  f o r  o u r  c o m m u n i t y  s i n c e  1 9 9 4  


 


August 14, 2021 


 


TO: Alex Westhoff for Historic Preservation Commission  


VIA: email alex.westhoff@sfgov.org  


FROM: India Basin Neighborhood Association via Jill Fox (member of the Board) 


RE:  2020-009076COA  900 Innes Avenue (Shipwright’s Cottage) 


CC: Charlene.Angsuco@sfgov.org 


 


The India Basin Neighborhood Association (IBNA) respectively requests that the Historic Preservation 


Commission require that the Recreation and Parks Department (RPD) dedicate a specific space to honor India 


Basin history in the 900 Innes Avenue (Shipwright’s Cottage) restoration plan.  


 


IBNA is the organization that led the 4-year community-based effort to make the Shipwright’s Cottage San 


Francisco Landmark #250. It also advocated for over 15 years on the acquisition of the historic boatyard. IBNA 


is pleased to see the park project moving forward and welcomes the opportunity to work with RPD, the broader 


community, and experts to make this historic space come alive for future visitors. 


 


The Cottage is a landmark not because it is some famous architectural design but rather because of what 


happened here. The historic boatyard at 900 Innes is the last remaining evidence anywhere of the scow 


schooner industry and the wooden boats that fueled Bay Area commerce for over one hundred years. Since 


the HPC last discussed this building, all the boatyard buildings and features except the Shipwrights Cottage 


have been destroyed. The Cottage is the last opportunity to tell the story of what happened here. Please 


respect the intent of this landmark with a history space. 


 


During the landmarking campaign, neighbors produced this short video that provides some of the background 


of the historic boatyard: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=61HsRomTlLQ 


 


This dedicated history space in the Shipwright’s Cottage can include interpretive exhibits, photographs, 


presentation and performance space, and dioramas to tell visitors the significance of the wooden boats made 


here as well as all the stories of the native people, shipwrights, beer brewers, shrimpers, artists, and myriad 


other people who have called India Basin home.  


 


By guaranteeing an historic preservation and presentation space in the Cottage, 900 Innes will truly: 


• Bring to life this important part of San Francisco maritime and human history for education and historic 


tourism purposes 


• Encourage visitors from near and far to our waterfront to support local businesses, which will be the 


economic engine this neighborhood needs  


• Celebrate the resilient and creative people who lived and worked around India Basin for centuries 


 


Established in 1994, the IBNA Mission is to advocate for the needs of people living, working, and playing in 


India Basin while preserving its natural beauty, history, and diversity. IBNA is a membership organization 


managed by an all-volunteer Board of Directors. 


 


Thank you for your consideration, 


 


Board of Directors 


India Basin Neighborhood Association 



mailto:alex.westhoff@sfgov.org

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=61HsRomTlLQ





FROM: India Basin Neighborhood Association via Jill Fox (member of the Board)
RE: 2020-009076COA  900 Innes Avenue (Shipwright’s Cottage)
CC: Charlene.Angsuco@sfgov.org
 
The India Basin Neighborhood Association (IBNA) respectively requests that the Historic
Preservation Commission require that the Recreation and Parks Department (RPD)
dedicate a specific space to honor India Basin history in the 900 Innes Avenue
(Shipwright’s Cottage) restoration plan.
 
IBNA is the organization that led the 4-year community-based effort to make the
Shipwright’s Cottage San Francisco Landmark #250. It also advocated for over 15 years on
the acquisition of the historic boatyard. IBNA is pleased to see the park project moving
forward and welcomes the opportunity to work with RPD, the broader community, and
experts to make this historic space come alive for future visitors.
 
The Cottage is a landmark not because it is some famous architectural design but rather
because of what happened here. The historic boatyard at 900 Innes is the last remaining
evidence anywhere of the scow schooner industry and the wooden boats that fueled Bay
Area commerce for over one hundred years. Since the HPC last discussed this building, all
the boatyard buildings and features except the Shipwrights Cottage have been destroyed.
The Cottage is the last opportunity to tell the story of what happened here. Please respect
the intent of this landmark with a history space.
 
During the landmarking campaign, neighbors produced this short video that provides some
of the background of the historic boatyard: https://www.youtube.com/watch?
v=61HsRomTlLQ
 
This dedicated history space in the Shipwright’s Cottage can include interpretive exhibits,
photographs, presentation and performance space, and dioramas to tell visitors the
significance of the wooden boats made here as well as all the stories of the native people,
shipwrights, beer brewers, shrimpers, artists, and myriad other people who have called
India Basin home. 
 
By guaranteeing an historic preservation and presentation space in the Cottage, 900 Innes
will truly:

·         Bring to life this important part of San Francisco maritime and human history for
education and historic tourism purposes

·         Encourage visitors from near and far to our waterfront to support local
businesses, which will be the economic engine this neighborhood needs

·         Celebrate the resilient and creative people who lived and worked around India
Basin for centuries

 
Established in 1994, the IBNA Mission is to advocate for the needs of people living,
working, and playing in India Basin while preserving its natural beauty, history, and
diversity. IBNA is a membership organization managed by an all-volunteer Board of
Directors.
 
Thank you for your consideration,
 
Board of Directors

mailto:Charlene.Angsuco@sfgov.org
https://avanan.url-protection.com/v1/url?o=https%3A//www.youtube.com/watch%3Fv%3D61HsRomTlLQ&g=YjQ0ZmQ3MGI1NjgzYjY4YQ==&h=MTI1ZWNhMDc1MmFjM2RhOWE0MDY4OTNjODYyNWU3ZDc0MjVhNWFiZDc2YTNiZjIzNWY2M2ZhMThkYTk1NjU5ZQ==&p=YXAzOnNmZHQyOmF2YW5hbjpvOjMyMjRkYzdiZWE1ZDU5Nzg0OTNhMGRhYWYxMGVjY2U0OnYx
https://avanan.url-protection.com/v1/url?o=https%3A//www.youtube.com/watch%3Fv%3D61HsRomTlLQ&g=YjQ0ZmQ3MGI1NjgzYjY4YQ==&h=MTI1ZWNhMDc1MmFjM2RhOWE0MDY4OTNjODYyNWU3ZDc0MjVhNWFiZDc2YTNiZjIzNWY2M2ZhMThkYTk1NjU5ZQ==&p=YXAzOnNmZHQyOmF2YW5hbjpvOjMyMjRkYzdiZWE1ZDU5Nzg0OTNhMGRhYWYxMGVjY2U0OnYx


India Basin Neighborhood Association



From: Westhoff, Alex (CPC)
To: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Lynch, Laura (CPC)
Subject: RE: 900 Innes Sponsor Packet Changes
Date: Friday, August 13, 2021 11:11:35 AM

Jonas,
 
The sponsor package I sent yesterday afternoon was not the same one which was in their packets.
While I had been clear about deadlines, the sponsors sent me a revised package with new project
sponsor letter, but not until late on Wednesday, after the case report had already been published.
Rich S. said it was ok though to email the HPC with this updated sponsor package and letter.
 
Let me know if that makes sense.

Thanks,
 
Alex  
 

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Friday, August 13, 2021 9:38 AM
To: Westhoff, Alex (CPC) <alex.westhoff@sfgov.org>
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC) <josephine.feliciano@sfgov.org>; Lynch, Laura (CPC)
<laura.lynch@sfgov.org>
Subject: Re: 900 Innes Sponsor Packet Changes
 
Alex,
Were these changes provided in their packets this week?
 
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
 
 

From: "Westhoff, Alex (CPC)" <alex.westhoff@sfgov.org>
Date: Thursday, August 12, 2021 at 4:53 PM
To: "Westhoff, Alex (CPC)" <alex.westhoff@sfgov.org>
Cc: "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Subject: 900 Innes Sponsor Packet Changes
 
Historic Preservation Commissioners,
 
I am writing in regards to the COA for 900 Innes, the Shipwright’s Cottage (2020-009076COA) which
will be brought back to the HPC Wednesday of next week. The sponsors provided a revised packet,

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


as well as a new project sponsor brief, from what was in the Commission packet published yesterday
afternoon.
 
The items can be downloaded here: https://www.dropbox.com/sh/qjkpn5teh5gibn1/AABNeqVlm-
aC7Uf1uikiPW2Ka?dl=0
 
The changes to the plans are as follows:
 
Pages 9 and 10:

Additional information and specificity about the community outreach, historical focus, and
intended content of the interpretive program, and the role of the Shipwright’s cottage within
the interpretation of the site.
Additional information about the interior rehabilitation scope, including retention and
restoration of interior trim, flooring, and ceiling finishes at the first floor of the cottage.
Additional information about the exterior rehabilitation and restoration, including future paint
analysis and historical color restoration for the siding, trim, decorative trim, windows and
doors.

 
Page 24:

Clarification of the scope and intent of the north side landing.
 
Page 35:

Clarification of historical focus of interpretive displays within the Shipwright’s Cottage.
 
Please let me know if you have any questions. Thank you.

Regards,
 
Alex Westhoff
 
 
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
 

https://www.dropbox.com/sh/qjkpn5teh5gibn1/AABNeqVlm-aC7Uf1uikiPW2Ka?dl=0
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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO TO REQUIRE PROOF OF VACCINATION FOR ENTRY TO CERTAIN

INDOOR BUSINESSES AND ALL LARGE INDOOR EVENTS
Date: Friday, August 13, 2021 9:36:25 AM
Attachments: 08.12.2021 Vaccination Policies.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Thursday, August 12, 2021 at 11:08 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO TO REQUIRE PROOF OF VACCINATION FOR
ENTRY TO CERTAIN INDOOR BUSINESSES AND ALL LARGE INDOOR EVENTS
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, August 12, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO TO REQUIRE PROOF OF VACCINATION
FOR ENTRY TO CERTAIN INDOOR BUSINESSES AND ALL

LARGE INDOOR EVENTS  
All restaurants, bars, clubs, gyms and large indoor events will be required to obtain proof of

vaccination from patrons and employees to protect against the continued spread of COVID-19
 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax
announced today that San Francisco will require businesses in certain high-contact indoor
sectors, such as those that serve food or drink like bars, restaurants, clubs, theaters and
entertainment venues, as well as indoor gyms and other fitness establishments, to obtain proof
of vaccination from their patrons and employees in order for them to go inside those facilities.
This does not include individuals ordering or picking up food or drink to go. The Health Order
is designed to protect against the continued spread of COVID-19, particularly among the
unvaccinated, while keeping businesses open and helping to ensure schools remain open.
 
Additionally, San Francisco’s order creates a new proof of vaccination requirement for large
events at indoor venues, requiring attendees who are age 12 or older at events with 1,000
people or more to provide proof of vaccination. Previously, state and local rules required proof
of vaccination or testing to attend indoor mega-events with 5,000 people or more. Under the
updated San Francisco order, providing a self-attestation of vaccination or a negative COVID-
19 test in lieu of proof of vaccination are no longer options for people 12 and older to attend

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
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


 


San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax 


announced today that San Francisco will require businesses in certain high-contact indoor 


sectors, such as those that serve food or drink like bars, restaurants, clubs, theaters and 


entertainment venues, as well as indoor gyms and other fitness establishments, to obtain proof of 


vaccination from their patrons and employees in order for them to go inside those facilities. This 


does not include individuals ordering or picking up food or drink to go. The Health Order 


is designed to protect against the continued spread of COVID-19, particularly among the 


unvaccinated, while keeping businesses open and helping to ensure schools remain open.  


 


Additionally, San Francisco’s order creates a new proof of vaccination requirement for large 


events at indoor venues, requiring attendees who are age 12 or older at events with 1,000 people 


or more to provide proof of vaccination. Previously, state and local rules required proof of 


vaccination or testing to attend indoor mega-events with 5,000 people or more. Under the 


updated San Francisco order, providing a self-attestation of vaccination or a negative COVID-19 


test in lieu of proof of vaccination are no longer options for people 12 and older to attend these 


indoor large or mega-events. Sponsors of outdoor events with more than 5,000 people attending 


are strongly urged to require proof of vaccination for patrons and staff. 


 


The health order also extends vaccination requirements to certain health care providers—


including workers at adult day centers, residential care facilities, dental offices, home health 


aides and pharmacists—who are not included in the state health order on vaccinations. 


 


“We know that for our city to bounce back from the pandemic and thrive, we need to use the best 


method we have to fight COVID-19 and that’s vaccines,” said Mayor Breed. “Many San 


Francisco businesses are already leading the way by requiring proof of vaccination for their 


customers because they care about the health of their employees, their customers, and this City. 


This order builds on their leadership and will help us weather the challenges ahead and keep our 


businesses open. Vaccines are our way out of the pandemic, and our way back to a life where we 


can be together safely.”   
 


The updates to San Francisco’s Safer Return Together Health Order are a response to 


the continued spread of COVID-19 most recently driven by the Delta variant primarily among 



mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
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unvaccinated people. While the City this week reported that 78% of the eligible population is 


fully vaccinated, the current surge in new cases demonstrates the need for additional measures to 


close the remaining gap of unvaccinated people, while protecting those not yet eligible for 


vaccines such as children under the age of 12. San Francisco fully reopened for business on June 


15 and has since seen encouraging signs that the economy is coming back to life, a rebound the 


City wants to maintain. San Francisco public schools are also reopening Monday for in-person 


instruction. 


 


The health order requirement for proof of full vaccination for patrons of indoor public settings, 


including bars, restaurants, clubs and gyms goes into effect on August 20. This requirement 


includes indoor event spaces where food or drink is served. By that same date, those businesses 


must use their best efforts to ascertain the vaccination status of their employees. To preserve jobs 


while giving time for compliance, the proof of vaccination requirement for staff goes into effect 


October 13 for employees.  


 


The vaccination requirements for indoor events, both private and public, that have 1,000 people 


or more in attendance go into effect on August 20. There is a limited exception for those events 


where tickets were sold before August 12 for events occurring by September 15; instead, those 


events may allow proof of negative testing as an alternative to proof of vaccination. The 


additional health care workers covered by the update to the order must be fully vaccinated by 


October 13.  


 


The requirements may be subject to limited exemptions under state and federal law. Also, the 


new requirements for proof of vaccination do not apply to individuals ineligible for vaccinations, 


including children under 12 years old. But everyone, including children two years and older, still 


must comply with applicable indoor mask requirements under local and state health rules.  


 


“In this phase of the pandemic, we must optimize the powerful tool of vaccines to protect us as 


we fully reopen to business,” said Director of Health, Dr. Grant Colfax. “These past few weeks 


have demonstrated how important it is that everyone eligible is vaccinated as we resume normal 


activities.” 


 


“We are issuing these new health requirements because indoor, public settings where people 


congregate in close quarters, often with their masks off, are a main way that the virus spreads,” 


said Acting Health Officer, Dr. Naveena Bobba. “With the increased COVID-19 case rates, we 


need everybody who is eligible for a vaccine to get one now.”   


 


San Francisco’s current 7-day average daily cases is 246 and the test positivity rate is 5.6%. This 


is compared to the peak of the winter surge when daily cases averaged 373 and the test positivity 


rate was 5.2%. As of August 8, 109 people were hospitalized, compared to 265 at the peak of the 


winter surge. The numbers demonstrate that even as cases soar, today’s surge is much less 


deadly than the previous ones with the most severe cases and hospitalizations among the 


unvaccinated.   
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The updated health care order puts another measure in place to boost vaccination rates. The City 


and County of San Francisco has required that all 35,000 City employees be vaccinated 10 weeks 


after final approval of one of the vaccines by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, which is 


expected shortly. Additionally, all employees at “high risk” healthcare and congregate settings, 


including acute care hospitals, skilled nursing facilities, homeless shelters, jails, and other 


locations, must also be vaccinated by September 15.   


  


“Two weeks ago, we started requiring proof of vaccination to dine inside in an effort to ensure 


the safety of our staff and our customers. We are thrilled to see San Francisco move boldly to 


make this a citywide policy as we strongly believe this is the best way to get beyond this 


pandemic,” said Mat Shuster, Chef/Owner of Canela Bistro & Wine Bar. 


 


“The San Francisco Venue Coalition fully supports the City and Mayor Breed's efforts to keep us 


all safe, healthy, and best prepared to fortify the City against the severity of the COVID-19 


pandemic. These increased provisions hopefully will expedite all public gathering places ability 


get back to doing what we all love—being a space for community in service to all San 


Franciscans,” said Casey Lowdermilk, Co-Founder of the San Francisco Venue Coalition. 


  


DPH is also making it increasingly easy and convenient to get vaccinated, last week launching a 


new mobile vaccination team called Vax to You that will vaccinate small groups of five to 12 


people in their homes and workplaces by appointment when they organize groups of interested 


individuals. Business owners can take advantage of this service by reaching out to the mobile 


vax team. For information about finding a safe, free and convenient COVID-19 vaccine, visit 


sf.gov/getvaccinated. For information on the new requirements, visit sf.gov/vaxrequired. 


 


Businesses can access SFDPH’s COVID-19 Outreach Toolkit with flyers, posters and other 


materials.  


  


### 



https://sf.gov/get-vaccinated-your-home-work-or-event

https://sf.gov/getvaccinated
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these indoor large or mega-events. Sponsors of outdoor events with more than 5,000 people
attending are strongly urged to require proof of vaccination for patrons and staff.
 
The health order also extends vaccination requirements to certain health care providers—
including workers at adult day centers, residential care facilities, dental offices, home health
aides and pharmacists—who are not included in the state health order on vaccinations.
 
“We know that for our city to bounce back from the pandemic and thrive, we need to use the
best method we have to fight COVID-19 and that’s vaccines,” said Mayor Breed. “Many San
Francisco businesses are already leading the way by requiring proof of vaccination for their
customers because they care about the health of their employees, their customers, and this
City. This order builds on their leadership and will help us weather the challenges ahead and
keep our businesses open. Vaccines are our way out of the pandemic, and our way back to a
life where we can be together safely.”  
 
The updates to San Francisco’s Safer Return Together Health Order are a response to
the continued spread of COVID-19 most recently driven by the Delta variant primarily among
unvaccinated people. While the City this week reported that 78% of the eligible population is
fully vaccinated, the current surge in new cases demonstrates the need for additional measures
to close the remaining gap of unvaccinated people, while protecting those not yet eligible for
vaccines such as children under the age of 12. San Francisco fully reopened for business on
June 15 and has since seen encouraging signs that the economy is coming back to life, a
rebound the City wants to maintain. San Francisco public schools are also reopening Monday
for in-person instruction.
 
The health order requirement for proof of full vaccination for patrons of indoor public settings,
including bars, restaurants, clubs and gyms goes into effect on August 20. This requirement
includes indoor event spaces where food or drink is served. By that same date, those
businesses must use their best efforts to ascertain the vaccination status of their employees. To
preserve jobs while giving time for compliance, the proof of vaccination requirement for staff
goes into effect October 13 for employees.
 
The vaccination requirements for indoor events, both private and public, that have 1,000
people or more in attendance go into effect on August 20. There is a limited exception for
those events where tickets were sold before August 12 for events occurring by September 15;
instead, those events may allow proof of negative testing as an alternative to proof of
vaccination. The additional health care workers covered by the update to the order must be
fully vaccinated by October 13.
 
The requirements may be subject to limited exemptions under state and federal law. Also, the
new requirements for proof of vaccination do not apply to individuals ineligible for
vaccinations, including children under 12 years old. But everyone, including children two
years and older, still must comply with applicable indoor mask requirements under local and
state health rules.
 
“In this phase of the pandemic, we must optimize the powerful tool of vaccines to protect us as
we fully reopen to business,” said Director of Health, Dr. Grant Colfax. “These past few
weeks have demonstrated how important it is that everyone eligible is vaccinated as we
resume normal activities.”
 

https://sfdph.org/dph/alerts/coronavirus-healthorders.asp


“We are issuing these new health requirements because indoor, public settings where people
congregate in close quarters, often with their masks off, are a main way that the virus
spreads,” said Acting Health Officer, Dr. Naveena Bobba. “With the increased COVID-19
case rates, we need everybody who is eligible for a vaccine to get one now.” 
 
San Francisco’s current 7-day average daily cases is 246 and the test positivity rate is 5.6%.
This is compared to the peak of the winter surge when daily cases averaged 373 and the test
positivity rate was 5.2%. As of August 8, 109 people were hospitalized, compared to 265 at
the peak of the winter surge. The numbers demonstrate that even as cases soar, today’s surge
is much less deadly than the previous ones with the most severe cases and hospitalizations
among the unvaccinated.  
 
The updated health care order puts another measure in place to boost vaccination rates. The
City and County of San Francisco has required that all 35,000 City employees be vaccinated
10 weeks after final approval of one of the vaccines by the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration, which is expected shortly. Additionally, all employees at “high risk”
healthcare and congregate settings, including acute care hospitals, skilled nursing facilities,
homeless shelters, jails, and other locations, must also be vaccinated by September 15.  
 
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
 
“The San Francisco Venue Coalition fully supports the City and Mayor Breed's efforts to keep
us all safe, healthy, and best prepared to fortify the City against the severity of the COVID-19
pandemic. These increased provisions hopefully will expedite all public gathering places
ability get back to doing what we all love—being a space for community in service to all San
Franciscans,” said Casey Lowdermilk, Co-Founder of the San Francisco Venue Coalition.
 
DPH is also making it increasingly easy and convenient to get vaccinated, last week launching
a new mobile vaccination team called Vax to You that will vaccinate small groups of five to
12 people in their homes and workplaces by appointment when they organize groups of
interested individuals. Business owners can take advantage of this service by reaching out to
the mobile vax team. For information about finding a safe, free and convenient COVID-19
vaccine, visit sf.gov/getvaccinated. For information on the new requirements, visit
sf.gov/vaxrequired.
 
Businesses can access SFDPH’s COVID-19 Outreach Toolkit with flyers, posters and other
materials.
 

###
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From: Lynch, Laura (CPC)
Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY; CTYPLN - CP TEAM (TAC - Preservation); Hillis, Rich (CPC)
Subject: HPC Calendars for August 18, 2021
Date: Thursday, August 12, 2021 5:22:36 PM
Attachments: 20210818_hpc.pdf

20210818_hpc.docx
HPC Hearing Results 2021.docx

Commissioners,
 
Attached are your Calendars for August 18, 2021.
 
Cheers,
 
Laura Lynch, Senior Planner
Environmental Planning Division
San Francisco Planning Department 
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400 San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415.575.9045 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map
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Ramaytush Ohlone Acknowledgement  
The Historic Preservation Commission acknowledges that we are on the unceded ancestral homeland of the Ramaytush Ohlone, who are the original 
inhabitants of the San Francisco Peninsula. As the indigenous stewards of this land and in accordance with their traditions, the Ramaytush Ohlone 
have never ceded, lost, nor forgotten their responsibilities as the caretakers of this place, as well as for all peoples who reside in their traditional 
territory. As guests, we recognize that we benefit from living and working on their traditional homeland. We wish to pay our respects by acknowledging 
the Ancestors, Elders, and Relatives of the Ramaytush Ohlone community and by affirming their sovereign rights as First Peoples. 
 
Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance 
Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City 
and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations 
are open to the people's review.  
 
For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of 
the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 554-
7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco 
Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine. 
  
Pr ivacy Policy 
Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act 
and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.  
 
Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its 
commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made 
available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This 
means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to 
the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect 
or copy. 
 
Accessible Meeting Information 
Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday through 
Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at the Grove, 
Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.   
 
Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness 
stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, 
call (415) 701-4485 or call 311. 
 
Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking 
Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall.  
 
Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations, 
please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing. 
 
Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589), or 
commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing. 
 
Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related 
disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings. 
 
S PANISH:  Agenda para la Comisión de Preservación de Edificios y Lugares Históricos (Historic Preservation Commission).  Si desea asistir a la 
audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al (628) 652-7550. Por favor llame por lo 
menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia. 


CHINESE: 歷史保護委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電(628) 652-7550。請在聽證會舉行之前的至
少48個小時提出要求。 


FILIPINO: Adyenda ng Komisyon para sa Pangangalaga ng Kasaysayan (Historic Preservation Commission Agenda). Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o 
para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa (628) 652-7550. Mangyaring tumawag 
nang maaga (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig.  


RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по защите памятников истории. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным 
слуховым устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру (628) 652-7550. Запросы должны делаться минимум 
за 48 часов до начала слушания.



mailto:sotf@sfgov.org
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Re mote Access to Information and Participation  
 


In a ccordance with Governor Newsom’s statewide order for a ll residents to Shelter-in-place - and the 
numerous preceding local a nd state proclamations, orders a nd supplemental directions - aggressive 
directives have been issued to slow down a nd reduce the spread of the COVID-19 virus.  
 
On Ma y 29, 2020, the Historic Preservation Commission was authorized to conduct their hearings 
remotely. Therefore, the Historic Preservation Commission meeting will be held via videoconferencing 
a nd allow for remote public comment. The Commission strongly encourages interested parties to submit 
their comments in writing, in a dvance of the hearing to commissions.secretary@sfgov.org. Visit the 
SFGovTV website (https://sfplanning.org/) to stream the live meetings or watch on a local television 
sta tion.  


The public comment call-in line number is (415) 655-0001.  You will a lso need an access code to join the 
meeting.  The access code for this hearing is 146 832 9595. This information will also be provided on the 
Department’s webpage https://sfplanning.org/ and during the live SFGovTV broadcast. 
 
As the COVID-19 emergency progresses, please visit the Planning website regularly to be updated on the 
current situation as it affects the hearing process and the Historic Preservation Commission. 
 


 ROLL CALL:   
 President: Diane Matsuda 


  Commissioners:                 Kate Black, Chris Foley, Richard S.E. Johns,  
   Ruchira Nageswaran, Lydia So, Jason Wright 
 
A. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
 


At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public  
that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items. With respect 
to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the item is 
reached in the meeting.  Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to three 
minutes. 
 
The Brown Act forbids a commission from taking action or discussing any item not appearing on the 
posted agenda, including those items raised at public comment.  In response to public comment, 
the commission is limited to:  
 
(1)  responding to statements made or questions posed by members of the public; or 
(2)  requesting staff to report back on a matter at a subsequent meeting; or  
(3)  directing staff to place the item on a future agenda.  (Government Code Section 54954.2(a)) 


 
B. DEPARTMENT MATTERS 


 
1. Department Announcements 


  
  



mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
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C. CO MMISSION MATTERS  
 


2. President’s Report and Announcements 
  
3. Consideration of Adoption: 


• Draft Minutes for August 4, 2021 
 


Adoption of Commission Minutes – Charter Section 4.104 requires all commissioners to vote 
yes or no on all matters unless that commissioner is excused by a vote of the Commission.  
Commissioners may not be automatically excluded from a vote on the minutes because they 
did not attend the meeting. 
 


4. Commission Comments & Questions 
• Disclosures. 
• Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may 


make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to 
the Commissioner(s). 


• Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take 
action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that 
could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of 
the Historic Preservation Commission. 


 
D. CO NSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE 
 


The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date.  The Commission may choose 
to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or to hear 
the item on this calendar. 
 


E. REGULAR CALENDAR   
 


5. 2020-009076COA (A. WESTHOFF: (628) 652-7315) 
900 INNES AVENUE – northeast corner of Griffith Street; Lot 003 in Assessor’s Block 4646 
(District 10) – Request for a Ce rtificate of Appropriateness for exterior alterations including 
new accessible entryways on two non-secondary facades. The property is Landmark No. 250, 
and is located within a P (Public) Zoning District and OS (Open Space) Height and Bulk 
District.  
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 
Note: On April 7, 2021, after hearing and closing public comment, continued to May 5, 2021 
by a vote of +7-0. On May 5, 2021, without hearing, continued to June 2, 2021 by a vote of 
+7 -0. On June 2, 2021, without hearing, continued to June 16, 2021 by a vote of +7 -0. On 
June 16, 2021, without hearing, continued to July 21, 2021 by a vote of +7 -0. On July 21, 
2021, without hearing, continued to August 18, 2021. 
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6. 2019-023623COA (A. WESTHOFF: (628) 652-7315) 
130 TOWNSEND STREET – northwest corner of Stanford Street, Lot 008 in Assessor’s Block 
3788 (District 6) – Request for a Ce rtificate of Appropriateness for a four-story vertical 
addition to the existing double-height one-story historic building (Townsend Building) and 
the new construction of a separate and completely autonomous five-story building 
(Stanford Building) on the rear surface parking lot. The proposed project would establish 
34,737 square feet of office use and 1,759 square feet of retail use in the Townsend Building 
and 46,464 square feet of office use and 711 square feet of Production, Distribution and 
Repair (PDR) use in the Stanford Building. The property is a contributing resource to the 
South End Landmark District, which is designated in Article 10 of the San Francisco Planning 
Code, and is located within the Central SoMa Mixed Use Office (CMUO) Zoning District, 
Central SoMa Special Use District and 65-X Height and Bulk District.  
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 


 
7. 2018-013597ENV (M. TAYLOR: (628) 652-7352) 


PORTSMOUTH SQUARE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT – 733 Kearny Street (Portsmouth Square) 
located on a block bound by Washington Street to the north, Clay Street to the south, Walter 
U Lum Place to the west, and Kearny Street to east, Assessor’s Block 0209, Lot 017 (District 
3). 750 Kearny Street located at the southeast corner of Washington Street, Assessor’s Block 
0208, Lot 024 (District 3).  Kearny Street Pedestrian Bridge located on Kearny Street between 
Washington Street to the north, and Clay Street to the south and connecting Block 0209, Lot 
017 to Block 0208, Lot 024 (District 3). Re view and Comment before the Historic Preservation 
Commission on the Draft Environmental Impact Report for the proposed project. The project 
proposes to demolish the elevated pedestrian bridge that connects Portsmouth Square to 
750 Kearny Street and renovate Portsmouth Square’s existing park features. The proposed 
work at Portsmouth Square includes a new children’s playground, a new clubhouse, re-
waterproofing the roof of the existing underground parking garage, implementing 
structural upgrades to the Portsmouth Square Garage, and new landscaping. The site at 733 
Kearny Street, 750 Kearny Street, and Kearny Street Pedestrian Bridge are all considered 
historical resources for purposes of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The 
project site is located within a P (Public) and C-3-O (Downtown Office) Zoning Districts and 
OS and 200-S Height and Bulk Limits. 
Preliminary Recommendation: Review and Comment 


 
ADJOURNMENT 
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He aring Procedures 
The Historic Preservation Commission holds public hearings on the first and third Wednesday, of most months. The full hearing 
schedule for the calendar year and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org.  
 
Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item.  
 When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.  


Speakers will hear two alarms.  The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining.  The second louder sound 
indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended. 


 
Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are 
prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or 
use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use 
of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings). 
 
For most cases that are considered by the Historic Preservation Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, 
shall be considered by the Commission in the following order: 
 


1. Presentation by Staff; 
2. Presentation by the Project Sponsor’s Team (which includes: the sponsor, representative, legal counsel, architect, 


engineer, expeditor and/or any other advisor) for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair; 
3. Public testimony from supporters of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair; 
4. Presentation by Organized Opposition recognized by the Commission President through written request prior to the 


hearing for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair; 
5. Public testimony from opponents of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair; 
6. Staff follow-up and/or conclusions; 
7. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened by 


the Chair; 
8. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or continue 


to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission. 
 
Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of 
four (4) votes.  A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any 
Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members present 
constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission). 
 
He aring Materials 
Each item on the Agenda may include the following documents: 


• Planning Department Case Executive Summary 
• Planning Department Case Report 
• Draft Motion or Resolution with Findings and/or Conditions 
• Public Correspondence 


 
Materials submitted to the Historic Preservation Commission prior to a scheduled hearing will become part of the public record 
only when the materials are also provided to the Commission Secretary and/or Project Planner.  Correspondence may be emailed 
directly to the Commission Secretary at: commissions.secretary@sfgov.org.   
 
Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Historic Preservation 
Commission, 49 South Van Ness, 14th Floor, San Francisco, CA  94103-2414.  Written comments received by the close of the business 
day prior to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Historic Preservation Commission and made part of the official 
record.   
 
Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be 
received by the Planning Department reception eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  All submission packages must 
be delivered to 49 South Van Ness, 14th Floor, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) copies. 
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Day-of Submissions: Material related to a calendared item may be distributed at the hearing. Please provide ten (10) copies for 
distribution.  
 
Appeals 
The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Historic Preservation 
Commission hearing. 
 


Ca se Type Ca se Suffix Appeal Period* Appeal Body 
Certificate of Appropriateness COA (A) 30 calendar days Board of Appeals** 
CEQA Determination  ENV (E) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 
Permit to Alter/Demolish PTA (H) 30 calendar days Board of Appeals** 


 
**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project 
requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal.  An appeal of an Office 
Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization. 
 
For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  For more 
information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or 
board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org.  
 
Challenges 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, the approval of (1) a Certificate of Appropriateness, (2) a 
Permit to Alter, (3) a Landmark or Historic District designation, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else 
raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Historic Preservation 
Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing. 
 
Pr oposition F 
Under Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 1.127, no person or entity with a financial interest in a land use matter 
pending before the Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, Building Inspection Commission, Commission on Community 
Investment and Infrastructure, Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, Port Commission, or the Treasure Island 
Development Authority Board of Directors, may make a campaign contribution to a member of the Board of Supervisors, the 
Mayor, the City Attorney, or a candidate for any of those offices, from the date the land use matter commenced until 12 months 
after the board or commission has made a final decision or any appeal to another City agency from that decision has been resolved.  
For more information about this restriction, visit sfethics.org. 
  
S a n Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance 
Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San 
Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying 
activity.  For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness 
Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics. 
  
 



mailto:board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org

http://www.sfgov.org/ethics



		Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.

		Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding...

		B. DEPARTMENT MATTERS

		Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringin...

		San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance
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[bookmark: _Hlk36802641]Hearing Materials are available at:

Historic Preservation Commission Packet and Correspondence







Commission Hearing Broadcasts:

Live stream: https://www.sfgovtv.org/planning







Disability and language accommodations available upon request to:

 commissions.secretary@sfgov.org or (628) 652-7536 at least 48 hours in advance.





[bookmark: _Hlk37062483]

Ramaytush Ohlone Acknowledgement 

The Historic Preservation Commission acknowledges that we are on the unceded ancestral homeland of the Ramaytush Ohlone, who are the original inhabitants of the San Francisco Peninsula. As the indigenous stewards of this land and in accordance with their traditions, the Ramaytush Ohlone have never ceded, lost, nor forgotten their responsibilities as the caretakers of this place, as well as for all peoples who reside in their traditional territory. As guests, we recognize that we benefit from living and working on their traditional homeland. We wish to pay our respects by acknowledging the Ancestors, Elders, and Relatives of the Ramaytush Ohlone community and by affirming their sovereign rights as First Peoples.



Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance

Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. 



For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine.

[bookmark: _Hlk879281] 

Privacy Policy

Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted. 



Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect or copy.



Accessible Meeting Information

Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.  



Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, call (415) 701-4485 or call 311.



Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall. 



Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589), or commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.



SPANISH:  Agenda para la Comisión de Preservación de Edificios y Lugares Históricos (Historic Preservation Commission).  Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al (628) 652-7550. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia.

CHINESE: 歷史保護委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電(628) 652-7550。請在聽證會舉行之前的至少48個小時提出要求。

FILIPINO: Adyenda ng Komisyon para sa Pangangalaga ng Kasaysayan (Historic Preservation Commission Agenda). Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa (628) 652-7550. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig. 

RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по защите памятников истории. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным слуховым устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру (628) 652-7550. Запросы должны делаться минимум за 48 часов до начала слушания.



Remote Access to Information and Participation 



[bookmark: _Hlk37426845]In accordance with Governor Newsom’s statewide order for all residents to Shelter-in-place - and the numerous preceding local and state proclamations, orders and supplemental directions - aggressive directives have been issued to slow down and reduce the spread of the COVID-19 virus. 



On May 29, 2020, the Historic Preservation Commission was authorized to conduct their hearings remotely. Therefore, the Historic Preservation Commission meeting will be held via videoconferencing and allow for remote public comment. The Commission strongly encourages interested parties to submit their comments in writing, in advance of the hearing to commissions.secretary@sfgov.org. Visit the SFGovTV website (https://sfplanning.org/) to stream the live meetings or watch on a local television station. 

[bookmark: _Hlk48037677]The public comment call-in line number is (415) 655-0001.  You will also need an access code to join the meeting.  The access code for this hearing is 146 832 9595. This information will also be provided on the Department’s webpage https://sfplanning.org/ and during the live SFGovTV broadcast.



As the COVID-19 emergency progresses, please visit the Planning website regularly to be updated on the current situation as it affects the hearing process and the Historic Preservation Commission.



 ROLL CALL:		

	President:	Diane Matsuda

		Commissioners:                	Kate Black, Chris Foley, Richard S.E. Johns, 

			Ruchira Nageswaran, Lydia So, Jason Wright



A.	GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT



At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items. With respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the item is reached in the meeting.  Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to three minutes.



The Brown Act forbids a commission from taking action or discussing any item not appearing on the posted agenda, including those items raised at public comment.  In response to public comment, the commission is limited to: 



(1)  responding to statements made or questions posed by members of the public; or

(2)  requesting staff to report back on a matter at a subsequent meeting; or 

(3)  directing staff to place the item on a future agenda.  (Government Code Section 54954.2(a))



B.	DEPARTMENT MATTERS



1. Department Announcements

	

	

C.	COMMISSION MATTERS 



2.	President’s Report and Announcements

	

3.	Consideration of Adoption:

· Draft Minutes for August 4, 2021



Adoption of Commission Minutes – Charter Section 4.104 requires all commissioners to vote yes or no on all matters unless that commissioner is excused by a vote of the Commission.  Commissioners may not be automatically excluded from a vote on the minutes because they did not attend the meeting.



4.	Commission Comments & Questions

· Disclosures.

· Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to the Commissioner(s).

· Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of the Historic Preservation Commission.



D.	CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE



The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date.  The Commission may choose to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or to hear the item on this calendar.



E.	REGULAR CALENDAR  



[bookmark: _Hlk79574129]5.	2020-009076COA	(A. WESTHOFF: (628) 652-7315)

900 INNES AVENUE – – northeast corner of Griffith Street; Lot 003 in Assessor’s Block 4646 (District 10) – Request for a Certificate of Appropriateness for exterior alterations including new accessible entryways on two non-secondary facadesIs. The property is Landmark No. 250, and is located within a P (Public) Zoning District and OS (Open Space) Height and Bulk District. 

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Note: On April 7, 2021, after hearing and closing public comment, continued to May 5, 2021 by a vote of +7-0. On May 5, 2021, without hearing, continued to June 2, 2021 by a vote of +7 -0. On June 2, 2021, without hearing, continued to June 16, 2021 by a vote of +7 -0. On June 16, 2021, without hearing, continued to July 21, 2021 by a vote of +7 -0. On July 21, 2021, without hearing, continued to August 18, 2021.



	




6.	2019-023623COA	(A. WESTHOFF: (628) 652-7315)

130 TOWNSEND STREET –  Located on the northwest corner of Townsend and Stanford Streets, Lot 008 in Assessor’s Block 3788 (District 6) – Request for a Certificate of Appropriateness for a four-story vertical addition to the existing double-height one-story historic building (Townsend Building) and the new construction of a separate and completely autonomous five-story building (Stanford Building) on the rear surface parking lot. The proposed project would establish 34,737 square feet of office use and 1,759 square feet of retail use in the Townsend Building and 46,464 square feet of office use and 711 square feet of Production, Distribution and Repair (PDR) use in the Stanford Building. The property is a contributing resource to the South End Landmark District, which is designated in Article 10 of the San Francisco Planning Code, and is located within athe Central SoMa Mixed Use Office (CMUO) Zoning District, Central SoMa Special Use District and a 65-X Height and Bulk District. 

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



7.	2018-013597ENV	(M. TAYLOR: (628) 652-7352)

PORTSMOUTH SQUARE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT – 733 Kearny Street (Portsmouth Square) located on a block bound by Washington Street to the north, Clay Street to the south, Walter U Lum Place to the west, and Kearny Street to east, Assessor’s Block 0209, Lot 017 (District 3). 750 Kearny Street located at the southeast corner of Washington and Kearny Streets, Assessor’s Block 0208, Lot 024 (District 3).  Kearny Street Pedestrian Bridge located on Kearny Street between Washington Street to the north, and Clay Street to the south and connecting Block 0209, Lot 017 to Block 0208, Lot 024 (District 3). Review and Comment before the Historic Preservation Commission on the Draft Environmental Impact Report for the proposed project. The project proposes to demolish the elevated pedestrian bridge that connects Portsmouth Square to 750 Kearny Street and renovate Portsmouth Square’s existing park features. The proposed work at Portsmouth Square includes a new children’s playground, a new clubhouse, re-waterproofing the roof of the existing underground parking garage, implementing structural upgrades to the Portsmouth Square Garage, and new landscaping. The site at 733 Kearny Street, 750 Kearny Street, and Kearny Street Pedestrian Bridge are all considered historical resources for purposes of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The project site is located within a P (Public) and C-3-O (Downtown Office) Zoning Districts and OS and 200-S Height and Bulk Limits.

Preliminary Recommendation: Review and Comment



ADJOURNMENT




Hearing Procedures

The Historic Preservation Commission holds public hearings on the first and third Wednesday, of most months. The full hearing schedule for the calendar year and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org. 



Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item. 

· When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.  Speakers will hear two alarms.  The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining.  The second louder sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended.



Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings).



For most cases that are considered by the Historic Preservation Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:



1. Presentation by Staff;

2. Presentation by the Project Sponsor’s Team (which includes: the sponsor, representative, legal counsel, architect, engineer, expeditor and/or any other advisor) for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

3. Public testimony from supporters of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

4. Presentation by Organized Opposition recognized by the Commission President through written request prior to the hearing for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

5. Public testimony from opponents of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

6. Staff follow-up and/or conclusions;

7. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened by the Chair;

8. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission.



Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of four (4) votes.  A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission).



Hearing Materials

Each item on the Agenda may include the following documents:

· Planning Department Case Executive Summary

· Planning Department Case Report

· Draft Motion or Resolution with Findings and/or Conditions

· Public Correspondence



Materials submitted to the Historic Preservation Commission prior to a scheduled hearing will become part of the public record only when the materials are also provided to the Commission Secretary and/or Project Planner.  Correspondence may be emailed directly to the Commission Secretary at: commissions.secretary@sfgov.org.  



Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Historic Preservation Commission, 49 South Van Ness, 14th Floor, San Francisco, CA  94103-2414.  Written comments received by the close of the business day prior to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Historic Preservation Commission and made part of the official record.  



Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be received by the Planning Department reception eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  All submission packages must be delivered to 49 South Van Ness, 14th Floor, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) copies.



Day-of Submissions: Material related to a calendared item may be distributed at the hearing. Please provide ten (10) copies for distribution. 



Appeals

The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Historic Preservation Commission hearing.



		Case Type

		Case Suffix

		Appeal Period*

		Appeal Body



		Certificate of Appropriateness

		COA (A)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Appeals**



		CEQA Determination 

		ENV (E)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Permit to Alter/Demolish

		PTA (H)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Appeals**







**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal.  An appeal of an Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization.



For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  For more information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org. 



Challenges

Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, the approval of (1) a Certificate of Appropriateness, (2) a Permit to Alter, (3) a Landmark or Historic District designation, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Historic Preservation Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing.



Proposition F

Under Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 1.127, no person or entity with a financial interest in a land use matter pending before the Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, Building Inspection Commission, Commission on Community Investment and Infrastructure, Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, Port Commission, or the Treasure Island Development Authority Board of Directors, may make a campaign contribution to a member of the Board of Supervisors, the Mayor, the City Attorney, or a candidate for any of those offices, from the date the land use matter commenced until 12 months after the board or commission has made a final decision or any appeal to another City agency from that decision has been resolved.  For more information about this restriction, visit sfethics.org.

 

San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity.  For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics.
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To:		Staff

From:	Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

Re:		Historic Preservation Commission Hearing Results

	

NEXT RESOLUTION No:  1197

NEXT MOTION No:  0444

NEXT COMMENT LETTER:  0089

M = Motion; R = Resolution; L = HPC Comment Letter

   August 4, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for ARC May 19, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		 Draft Minutes for HPC July 21, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-1195

		2021-002831DES

		One Montgomery Street (Aka 1-25 Montgomery Street), Crocker National Bank Building

		LaValley

		Adopted a Recommendation

		+6-0 (Wright recused)



		R-1196

		2021-002874DES

		447 Battery Street (aka Jones-Thierbach Coffee Company Building)

		LaValley

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval as amended to include Findings articulated by Commissioners Nageswaran and Johns; and eliminating the three-story, rectangular shape as character defining features.

		+5 -1 (Nageswaran against; Wright recused)



		M-0442

		2021-001636PTA

		161 Steuart Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2019-021884ENV

		2500 Mariposa Street

		Greving

		Reviewed and Commented (Commissioners Foley and Nageswaran recused)

		



		M-0443

		2020-010382CRV

		Delegation of Minor Scopes of Work to the Planning Department

		Giacomucci; Vimr

		Approved with Amendments read into the record.

		+7 -0







   July 21, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for July 7, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2020-009076COA

		900 Innes Avenue

		Westhoff

		Continued to August 18, 2021

		+6-0 (Wright recused)



		M-0441

		2021-004293COA

		55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive

		Taylor

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

1. ARG Comments related to patching;

2. This temporary installation is to run concurrent with the Monumental Reckoning installation and expire on June 19, 2023;

3. Mock-up installation and removal to ensure no damage, prior to full installation;

4. Gasketing is to be further explored; and

5. Core drilling is no longer a part of the installation.

		+7 -0







   July 7, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 16, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-1192

		2021-005812PCA

		Establishing the Sunset Chinese Cultural District Ordinance [Board File 210599]

		Ikezoe

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		

		2020-009640OTH

		Centering Planning on Racial & Social Equity

		Flores

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-1193

		2021-001791PCA

		Review Of Large Residence Developments [Board File No. 210116]

		Merlone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval with Staff Modifications, adding a Whereas clause, encouraging the Planning Commission and Supervisor to take additional time to provide clarity and address the concerns raised by the HPC.

		+7 -0



		M-0440

		2020-005897PTA

		233 Geary Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		R-1194

		2021-004690CRV

		555 19th Street

		Giacomucci

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		

		2019-014146ENV

		520 John Muir Drive

		Greving

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2017-012086ENV

		770 Woolsey Street

		Greving

		Reviewed and Commented

		







  June 16, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 19, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2020-005897PTA

		233 Geary Street

		Vimr

		Continued to July 7, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2020-009076COA

		900 Innes Avenue

		Westhoff

		Continued to July 21, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-0437

		2021-001102PTA

		660 Market Street

		Vimr

		Approved

		+7 -0



		M-0438

		2020-010710COA

		400 California Street

		Enchill

		Approved (Option 2) adding a finding indicating a strong recommendation for an on-site interpretive program, with the expectation that the Planning Commission will make it a condition of approval as part of the project’s entitlement.

		+7 -0



		

		2018-013597ENV

		Portsmouth Square Improvement Project

		Taylor

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-0439

		2015-001033COA-02

		940 Battery Street

		Salgado

		Approved

		+6-0 (Foley absent)







   May 19, 2021 ARC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-005897PTA

		233 Geary Street

		Vimr

		Reviewed and Commented  

		



		

		2021-004293COA

		55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive

		Taylor

		Reviewed and Commented  

		







   May 19, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 5, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2020-010710COA

		400 California Street

		Enchill

		Continued to June 2, 2021

		+7 -0



		R-1185

		2021-004010LBR

		Pier 45 Shed D-1

		Gunther

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+6 -0 (Matsuda recused)



		R-1186

		2021-004011LBR

		6040 Geary Boulevard

		Gunther

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1187

		2021-004018LBR             

		3067 Sacramento Street

		Bishop

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1188

		2021-004015LBR

		25 Russia Avenue

		Bishop

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1189

		2021-004017LBR

		618 Broadway

		Wu

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1190

		2021-004016LBR            

		1745 Folsom Street

		Wu

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1191

		2021-001853DES

		San Francisco Eagle Bar, 396-398 12th Street

		Westhoff

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0







  May 5, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-009076COA

		900 Innes Avenue

		Westhoff

		Continued to June 2, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 7, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-0436

		2021-000965COA

		1201 Ortega Street

		Cisneros

		Approved

		+7 -0



		R-1184

		2021-001721DES

		“The Making of a Fresco Showing the Building of a City,” 800 Chestnut Street

		LaValley

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval as amended.

		+7 -0







   April 21, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 7, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted 

		+7 -0



		R-1183

		2021-002933PCA

		Simplify Restrictions on Small Business [Board File No. 210285] –

		Nickolopoulos

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval with staff modifications.

		+7 -0







   April 7, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for March 3, 2021

		Lynch

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-0434

		2020-010391PTA

		1 Kearny Street

		Salgado

		Approved

		+7 -0



		R-1175

		2021-005280LBR

		298 Pacific Avenue

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1176

		2021-002581LBR

		358 Noe Street

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1177

		2021-002571LBR

		550 Bayshore Boulevard

		Wu

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1178

		2021-002569LBR

		650 04th Street

		Balba

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1179

		2021-002579LBR

		1735 Mission Street

		Balba

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1180

		2021-002570LBR

		937 Cole Street

		Agnihotri

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1181

		2021-002891LBR

		4115 19th Street

		Agnihotri

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		M-0435

		2020-004724COA

		1045 Sansome Street

		Langlie

		Approved

		+7 -0



		

		2020-009076COA

		900 Innes Avenue

		Westhoff

		After hearing and closing public comment, Continued to May 5, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2014.0263U

		Residence Parks Historic Context Statement

		McMillen

		Reviewed and Commented  

		



		R-1182

		2021-000795DES

		Ingleside Terraces Sundial and Sundial Park

		McMillen

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		

		2016-013156SRV

		Citywide Cultural Resources Survey

		Boudreaux

		Reviewed and Commented  

		



		

		2015-007181OTH

		Preservation Reporting and Landmarks Update

		Boudreaux

		Reviewed and Commented  

		







   March 3, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 17, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2020-004724COA

		1045 Sansome Street

		Langlie

		Continued to April 7, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-0432

		2021-000208COA

		1800 Mission Street

		Salgado

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Matsuda absent) 



		R-1171

		2021-001263LBR

		848 Washington Street

		Gunther

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1172

		2021-001264LBR  

		350 Hayes Street

		Gunther

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1173

		2021-001265LBR

		888 Brannan Street, Suite 100

		Wu

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1174

		2021-001255LBR

		4494 Mission Street

		Wu

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		M-0433

		2019-022126COA-04

		55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive

		Taylor

		Approved as revised by Staff and amended to include:

1. Eight weeks for Rec/Park to provide materials re: the generator and fencing; and 

2. An update hearing in 12 months.

		+7 -0







   February 17, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 3, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-1170

		2020-011305DES

		Lyon-Martin House, 649-651 Duncan Street

		LaValley

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval, striking any reference to the adjacent vacant parcel.

		+6 -1 (Hyland against)



		

		2019-022126COA-04

		55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive

		Taylor

		After hearing and closing public comment, Continued to March 3, 2021

		+6 -0 (Johns absent) 







   February 3, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 20, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-1167

		2020-010430CRV

		FY 2020-2021 Proposed Department Budget

		Landis

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1168

		2021-000331LBR

		250 Napoleon Street

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1169

		2020-000330LBR

		5166 3rd Street

		Bishop

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		

		2019-022850ENV

		1101-1123 Sutter Street

		Greving

		Reviewed and Commented

		







   January 20, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 6, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2020-010430CRV

		FY 2021-2023 Proposed Department Budget and Work Program

		Landis

		

		



		R-1165

		2020-009613DES

		2778 24th Street (Casa Sanchez Building)  

		LaValley

		Adopted a Recommendation for Initiation

		+7 -0



		R-1166

		2020-009614DES

		2868 Mission Street (Mission Cultural Center)

		 Corrette

		Adopted a Recommendation for Initiation

		+7 -0







  January 6, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for December 16, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-1160

		2020-011535LBR

		415 Geary Street

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1161

		2020-011546LBR

		3003 03rd Street

		Gunther

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1162

		2020-011549LBR

		1376 Haight Street

		Gunther

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1163

		2020-011536LBR

		1792 Haight Street

		Agnihotri

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1164

		2020-011534LBR

		2720 24th Street

		Agnihotri

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND CITY ADMINISTRATOR CARMEN CHU ON PUBLIC

WORKS DIRECTOR ALARIC DEGRAFINRIED TAKING A NEW POSITION AT BART
Date: Wednesday, August 11, 2021 2:31:53 PM
Attachments: 08.11.2021 Public Works Director.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Wednesday, August 11, 2021 at 2:13 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND CITY ADMINISTRATOR CARMEN
CHU ON PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR ALARIC DEGRAFINRIED TAKING A NEW POSITION AT BART
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, August 11, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** STATEMENT ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED AND CITY ADMINISTRATOR
CARMEN CHU ON PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR ALARIC

DEGRAFINRIED TAKING A NEW POSITION AT BART
Degrafinried led the Department through the pandemic and implemented good

government reforms
 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and City Administrator Carmen Chu today
issued the following statements on the upcoming departure of Acting Public Works Director
Alaric Degrafinried, who has accepted a new position with the Bay Area Rapid Transit
Agency (BART) as Assistant General Manager, effective August 23, 2021.
 
An Acting Public Works Director will be named in the coming days, and a search is underway
for a long-term replacement.
 
“Alaric has done a tremendous job leading Public Works during an incredibly challenging
time in our city,” said Mayor Breed. “In February of 2020, Alaric stepped in to run this
Department at a time when faith in the Department had been shaken, and our workers needed
a steady hand to guide them. Alaric quickly guided the implementation of a number of
important good government reforms to provide greater transparency and accountability,
including mandating ethics training for all Public Works employees, and strengthening
transparency and oversight involving Public Works contracts and grants. He also led our hard-

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org



OFFICE OF THE MAYOR   LONDON N.  BREED  
 SAN FRANCISCO                                                                    MAYOR  
     
 


 


1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, ROOM 200 
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681 


TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141 


 


 


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


Alaric Degrafinried, who has accepted a new position with the Bay Area Rapid Transit Agency 


(BART) as Assistant General Manager, effective August 23, 2021. 


 


An Acting Public Works Director will be named in the coming days, and a search is underway 


for a long-term replacement.  


 


“Alaric has done a tremendous job leading Public Works during an incredibly challenging time 


in our city,” said Mayor Breed. “In February of 2020, Alaric stepped in to run this Department at 


a time when faith in the Department had been shaken, and our workers needed a steady hand to 


guide them. Alaric quickly guided the implementation of a number of important good 


government reforms to provide greater transparency and accountability, including mandating 


ethics training for all Public Works employees, and strengthening transparency and oversight 


involving Public Works contracts and grants. He also led our hard-working Public Works 


employees through a pandemic that challenged all of our Departments like never before. Under 


his leadership, the men and women who clean and care for our city showed up day after day to 


keep our streets clean and help get this City through this crisis. I wish Alaric luck in his new role 


at BART, and I am confident that he has set a strong foundation for the next leader of the 


Department.” 


 


"On behalf of the City Administrator’s Office I want to thank Alaric for an exemplary 14 years 


of service,” said City Administrator Chu. “At every step of his career, Alaric sought 


understanding and excellence. He began his career with the City as a contract compliance officer 


with the Human Rights Commission helping local businesses succeed, managed contracting at 


the Public Utilities Commission, a $1.5 billion operating enterprise, and oversaw all contracting 


and purchasing activities for the City and County of San Francisco as City Purchaser. Recently, 


he stepped up to help steady the ship and lead Public Works through an unprecedented and 


challenging time.  I will miss working with Alaric, the ability to tap his mind on a host of 


complex City processes and the integrity with which he operates. His experience and 


commitment to San Francisco will be hard to replace, but we are comforted knowing he will 


continue to serve the public in his capacity at BART." 
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“I would like to thank Mayor Breed, City Administrator Chu and especially the Public Works 


team for supporting me during my time here. This has been one of the most rewarding 


experiences of my career, as we stepped up to the challenges of the COVID crisis, implemented 


good government reforms and advanced our organization’s racial equity initiative,” Degrafinried 


said. “The men and women of this department day in and day out demonstrate resiliency, hard 


work and innovation serving the people of San Francisco.” 


 


### 







working Public Works employees through a pandemic that challenged all of our Departments
like never before. Under his leadership, the men and women who clean and care for our city
showed up day after day to keep our streets clean and help get this City through this crisis. I
wish Alaric luck in his new role at BART, and I am confident that he has set a strong
foundation for the next leader of the Department.”
 
"On behalf of the City Administrator’s Office I want to thank Alaric for an exemplary 14
years of service,” said City Administrator Chu. “At every step of his career, Alaric sought
understanding and excellence. He began his career with the City as a contract compliance
officer with the Human Rights Commission helping local businesses succeed, managed
contracting at the Public Utilities Commission, a $1.5 billion operating enterprise, and
oversaw all contracting and purchasing activities for the City and County of San Francisco as
City Purchaser. Recently, he stepped up to help steady the ship and lead Public Works through
an unprecedented and challenging time.  I will miss working with Alaric, the ability to tap his
mind on a host of complex City processes and the integrity with which he operates. His
experience and commitment to San Francisco will be hard to replace, but we are comforted
knowing he will continue to serve the public in his capacity at BART."
 
“I would like to thank Mayor Breed, City Administrator Chu and especially the Public Works
team for supporting me during my time here. This has been one of the most rewarding
experiences of my career, as we stepped up to the challenges of the COVID crisis,
implemented good government reforms and advanced our organization’s racial equity
initiative,” Degrafinried said. “The men and women of this department day in and day out
demonstrate resiliency, hard work and innovation serving the people of San Francisco.”
 

###
 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON SAN FRANCISCO BUSINESSES JOINING PUSH FOR

VACCINE REQUIREMENTS
Date: Tuesday, August 10, 2021 10:23:12 AM
Attachments: 08.06.2021 Business Vaccines.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Friday, August 6, 2021 at 11:37 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON SAN FRANCISCO BUSINESSES
JOINING PUSH FOR VACCINE REQUIREMENTS
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, August 6, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ON SAN FRANCISCO BUSINESSES

JOINING PUSH FOR VACCINE REQUIREMENTS
Businesses, both large and small, are requiring vaccines for either workers or customers as

part of growing push to increase vaccine uptake in San Francisco
 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today recognized those businesses that are
implementing vaccine requirements as part of the way to move San Francisco forward. Many
large businesses are putting in new vaccine requirements for their returning employees, and
many small businesses are adding vaccine requirements for both employees and customers.  
 
Today, DoorDash and the YMCA of San Francisco joined a number of other companies,
including Facebook, Google, Lyft, Uber, Twilio, and Twitter in requiring San Francisco
employees to be vaccinated to return to in-person work this year. These office-based
businesses accompany a growing number of customer-facing businesses in the restaurant,
nightlife and entertainment industry such as The Independent, Rickshaw Stop, Bottom of the
Hill, DECANTsf, the Black Cat, and the SF Eagle that are leading in vaccine requirements.
The City and County of San Francisco is requiring that all City employees be vaccinated 10
weeks after final FDA approval, with certain medical and religious exemptions.
 
“Throughout this pandemic, San Francisco has led the way in following the guidance of our
public health experts and saving lives,” said Mayor Breed. “We know the vaccine is essential
for preventing hospitalizations and keeping people safe, and we all need to do our part to get

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
Businesses, both large and small, are requiring vaccines for either workers or customers as part 


of growing push to increase vaccine uptake in San Francisco 


 


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


employees to be vaccinated to return to in-person work this year. These office-based businesses 


accompany a growing number of customer-facing businesses in the restaurant, nightlife and 


entertainment industry such as The Independent, Rickshaw Stop, Bottom of the Hill, 


DECANTsf, the Black Cat, and the SF Eagle that are leading in vaccine requirements. The City 


and County of San Francisco is requiring that all City employees be vaccinated 10 weeks after 


final FDA approval, with certain medical and religious exemptions.  


 


“Throughout this pandemic, San Francisco has led the way in following the guidance of our 


public health experts and saving lives,” said Mayor Breed. “We know the vaccine is essential for 


preventing hospitalizations and keeping people safe, and we all need to do our part to get more 


people to get vaccinated. Every day, more and more businesses, both large and small, are 


stepping up to put stronger vaccine requirements in place, whether that’s requiring their 


employees to get vaccinated, or requiring people who come into their places of business to have 


been vaccinated. San Francisco has the highest vaccination rate of any major city because we all 


care about protecting public health. I appreciate all of the work these businesses are doing to 


protect their employees and our residents. Together we are sending a strong message that San 


Francisco is the safest city in the country to work, to visit, and to live.”  


 


In San Francisco, currently 77% of eligible residents (12 and up) are fully vaccinated, and 84% 


have had at least one dose. Vaccines remain the most powerful tool in the fight against COVID-


19, including the Delta variant. For information about finding a safe, free and convenient 


COVID-19 vaccine, visit sf.gov/getvaccinated. 


 


### 


 


 



mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org





more people to get vaccinated. Every day, more and more businesses, both large and small, are
stepping up to put stronger vaccine requirements in place, whether that’s requiring their
employees to get vaccinated, or requiring people who come into their places of business to
have been vaccinated. San Francisco has the highest vaccination rate of any major city
because we all care about protecting public health. I appreciate all of the work these
businesses are doing to protect their employees and our residents. Together we are sending a
strong message that San Francisco is the safest city in the country to work, to visit, and to
live.”
 
In San Francisco, currently 77% of eligible residents (12 and up) are fully vaccinated, and
84% have had at least one dose. Vaccines remain the most powerful tool in the fight against
COVID-19, including the Delta variant. For information about finding a safe, free and
convenient COVID-19 vaccine, visit sf.gov/getvaccinated.
 

###
 
 
 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** CITY REVEALS NEXT PHASE FOR GREAT HIGHWAY TO START AUGUST 16
Date: Tuesday, August 10, 2021 10:20:49 AM
Attachments: 08.05.2021 Great Highway.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Thursday, August 5, 2021 at 2:03 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** CITY REVEALS NEXT PHASE FOR GREAT HIGHWAY TO START
AUGUST 16
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, August 5, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
CITY REVEALS NEXT PHASE FOR GREAT HIGHWAY TO

START AUGUST 16
Stretch from Lincoln Way to Sloat Blvd will continue to be closed to car traffic on weekends

and holidays, but will open up to car traffic during the week
 
San Francisco, CA — Today Mayor London N. Breed and Supervisor Gordon Mar with
support from Supervisors Connie Chan and Myrna Melgar, announced that starting Monday,
August 16th, the Great Highway will have an adjusted operational plan tied to the pandemic
emergency closure. The Great Highway between Lincoln Way and Sloat Blvd will be open for
weekends and holidays for pedestrian and bicycle use only, and open to car traffic on
weekdays. The timing of this new operational plan is to combine with the first day of school to
support students and families getting to and from school, as well as people returning to getting
to and from work during the week.
 
Starting Monday, August 16th, the Great Highway will be closed to car traffic and open to
pedestrians and bicycles only from Fridays at 12:00 pm until Monday at 6:00 am, and will be
open to vehicular traffic from Mondays at 6:00 am to Fridays at 12:00 pm. On holidays, the
Great Highway will also be closed to vehicular traffic. This modification phase to the
emergency response will be in place until the Board of Supervisors considers legislation to
establish a one- or two-year pilot in this or in another configuration that would extend beyond
the pandemic emergency closure.
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
Stretch from Lincoln Way to Sloat Blvd will continue to be closed to car traffic on weekends and 


holidays, but will open up to car traffic during the week 


 


San Francisco, CA — Today Mayor London N. Breed and Supervisor Gordon Mar with support 


from Supervisors Connie Chan and Myrna Melgar, announced that starting Monday, August 


16th, the Great Highway will have an adjusted operational plan tied to the pandemic emergency 


closure. The Great Highway between Lincoln Way and Sloat Blvd will be open for weekends 


and holidays for pedestrian and bicycle use only, and open to car traffic on weekdays. The timing 


of this new operational plan is to combine with the first day of school to support students and 


families getting to and from school, as well as people returning to getting to and from work 


during the week. 


 


Starting Monday, August 16th, the Great Highway will be closed to car traffic and open to 


pedestrians and bicycles only from Fridays at 12:00 pm until Monday at 6:00 am, and will be 


open to vehicular traffic from Mondays at 6:00 am to Fridays at 12:00 pm. On holidays, the 


Great Highway will also be closed to vehicular traffic. This modification phase to the emergency 


response will be in place until the Board of Supervisors considers legislation to establish a one- 


or two-year pilot in this or in another configuration that would extend beyond the pandemic 


emergency closure. 


 


“The use of the Great Highway during this pandemic has revealed what we can do to provide our 


residents and families more opportunities to enjoy the west side of our city,” said Mayor Breed. 


“Having the Great Highway closed on weekends and holidays will make sure that residents and 


visitors still can enjoy this incredible space, while recognizing the needs of our families and 


residents who need to get to school and work during the week as we reopen. There has been a lot 


of ongoing community discussions and meetings about the long-term future of the Great 


Highway, and I look forward to that continuing over the coming months to inform the next phase 


of the project.”   


 


"The creation of an oceanfront promenade on the Great Highway during the pandemic has been 


transformational, with incredible benefits and real challenges,” said Supervisor Mar. “It’ll take 


new and robust investments in westside transit and transportation to truly address the traffic 


impacts, and it’s unreasonable to continue a 24/7 closure without them. Meanwhile, a weekday 


roadway and weekend promenade is a meaningful compromise and the right road forward. We’re 


balancing the benefits of this unique open space with the real need for safe and efficient traffic 


flow, and maintaining an oceanfront promenade when it’s used the most while offering some 
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relief during weekday commute times. I’m grateful to Mayor Breed for listening and working 


with us on this adjustment to the pandemic use of the Great Highway, while outreach moves 


forward to decide the post-pandemic use."  


 


“As the supervisor for the Richmond District, I have heard from most of my constituents the 


need for more travel access and connectivity in north-south directions, and the Great Highway 


has been a key roadway for access. The future of Great Highway must also include an increase of 


public transit routes and service frequency for the Richmond,” said Supervisor Chan, whose 


district includes Lone Mountain, Richmond and most of Golden Gate Park. “I want to thank 


Mayor Breed for hearing the Richmond District residents’ concerns and applaud her leadership 


for a solution to serve the purpose of outdoors recreation and travel access.” 


 


In April 2020, the Great Highway was closed to vehicular traffic between Lincoln Way and Sloat 


Blvd as part of the City’s response to the pandemic and the need for there to be more space for 


people. Moving forward, San Francisco officials are undergoing a long-term process to plan for 


the long-term future of the Great Highway. These changes are being made to align with the 


reopening of schools and the City’s emergence from this pandemic. 


 


### 


 


 







“The use of the Great Highway during this pandemic has revealed what we can do to provide
our residents and families more opportunities to enjoy the west side of our city,” said Mayor
Breed. “Having the Great Highway closed on weekends and holidays will make sure that
residents and visitors still can enjoy this incredible space, while recognizing the needs of our
families and residents who need to get to school and work during the week as we reopen.
There has been a lot of ongoing community discussions and meetings about the long-term
future of the Great Highway, and I look forward to that continuing over the coming months to
inform the next phase of the project.” 
 
"The creation of an oceanfront promenade on the Great Highway during the pandemic has
been transformational, with incredible benefits and real challenges,” said Supervisor Mar.
“It’ll take new and robust investments in westside transit and transportation to truly address
the traffic impacts, and it’s unreasonable to continue a 24/7 closure without them. Meanwhile,
a weekday roadway and weekend promenade is a meaningful compromise and the right road
forward. We’re balancing the benefits of this unique open space with the real need for safe and
efficient traffic flow, and maintaining an oceanfront promenade when it’s used the most while
offering some relief during weekday commute times. I’m grateful to Mayor Breed for listening
and working with us on this adjustment to the pandemic use of the Great Highway, while
outreach moves forward to decide the post-pandemic use."
 
“As the supervisor for the Richmond District, I have heard from most of my constituents the
need for more travel access and connectivity in north-south directions, and the Great Highway
has been a key roadway for access. The future of Great Highway must also include an increase
of public transit routes and service frequency for the Richmond,” said Supervisor Chan, whose
district includes Lone Mountain, Richmond and most of Golden Gate Park. “I want to thank
Mayor Breed for hearing the Richmond District residents’ concerns and applaud her
leadership for a solution to serve the purpose of outdoors recreation and travel access.”
 
In April 2020, the Great Highway was closed to vehicular traffic between Lincoln Way and
Sloat Blvd as part of the City’s response to the pandemic and the need for there to be more
space for people. Moving forward, San Francisco officials are undergoing a long-term process
to plan for the long-term future of the Great Highway. These changes are being made to align
with the reopening of schools and the City’s emergence from this pandemic.
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